
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 

AGENDA 

7:00 – 7:25 PM, Monday, April 21st, 2025 

In-Person, Council Chambers/Large Meeting Room 

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org. ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits.   

 
I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Dann 

 
II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS:  

Welcome, everyone, to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council action (making 

motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.   

 
III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 

Note – All Times are approximate  

 

A)  C-NET Presentation- Cindy Hahn –25 Minutes  

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is 

scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.  

 

 

 
    

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 1 of 144

http://www.cnet1.org/


1 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Council Business Meeting 

AGENDA 

7:30 PM Monday, April 21st, 2025 

In-Person, Council Chambers/Large Meeting Room, 

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Dann 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

III. ROLL CALL 

Mr. Bernier, North Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, Pro Temp, South Ward  Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Ms. Dann, President, South Ward  Mr. Larson, Jr. Council Member  

Mr. Johnson, Vice-President, North Ward  Ms. Meckley, Jr. Council Member   

Ms. McKean, West Ward  Mayor Johnson, At Large  

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Under Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council may not take official action on it with the 

following exceptions. Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies. Council may add a 

matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. The council must state why the action item is 

being added to the Agenda. Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it has been duly 

made and seconded.  The order of comment will be public comment and then council comment including, proposed 

amendments by council members.  If amendments are proposed to the original motion, the public will then only 

comment on the amendment(s) before final votes are taken.  You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit 

representative, business owner, or an official representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify 

themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three 

(3) minutes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at 

www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON. The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 2 of 144

http://www.cnet1.org/


VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written)

Glenn Thompson- Fiscal Year 2026 Appropriations Forms and Deadlines. FYI, no council action is requested. 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) FFY 2025 Proposed Schedule. FYI, no council action is requested. 

The Journal of School Safety PA SRO Treats students to Unique Bus Ride. FYI, no council action is requested. 

Talleyrand Park Clap Song (Earth is Home) video. FYI, no council action is requested. 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There will be 

no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for separate 

action.  Motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda.   

Finance Budget v. Actual March 2025 

Finance Budget v. Actual Summary March 2025 

General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes April 2nd, 2025 

General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes April 7th, 2025 

Finance Voucher Summary March 2025 

Finance Treasurer’s Report March 2025 

VII. REPORTS
Elected Official and Staff Reports 
Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor 
➢ Proclamation- Mount Nittany Health Week May 11-17, 2025

Mayor Johnson Submitted 

Police 
➢ March 2025 Report

Chief Witmer Submitted 

Parking 
➢ March 2025 Report

Ms. McCullough Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA): Please see the memo for more information 
➢ The Planning Commission meeting on April 14th had to be canceled last

minute due to there not being a quorum. The meeting has been rescheduled
for tomorrow, Tuesday, April 22nd, at 6:00 p.m. in the large meeting room.

➢ The HARB will meet tomorrow, Tuesday, April 22nd, at 8:30 a.m. in the
Oak Room.

Ms. Thompson Submitted 

Interim Borough Manager 
➢ March 2025 Report

Mr. Holderman Submitted 

VIII. COMMITTEE REPORTS
Elected Official Committee Reports 
Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

COMMITTEE ELECTED 

OFFICAL 

REPORT 

Environmental & Parks Committee 
➢ March & April 2025 Report

Ms. Tosti-Vasey Submitted 

Ordinance ad hoc Committee 
➢ March & April 2025 Report

Ms. Tosti-Vasey Submitted 

Finance & Administration Committee 
➢ March & April 2025 Report

Ms. Cleeton Submitted 

Infrastructure & Public Works Committee 
➢ March & April 2025 Report

Mr. Brachbill Submitted 

Streets Committee 
➢ March & April 2025 Report

Mr. Johnson Submitted 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 3 of 144



IX. LIAISON REPORTS 

Reports will be submitted in writing for inclusion in the council meeting materials. Reports may include draft 

meeting minutes, notes, memos, etc. No verbal report is to be given unless there is a question regarding the 

report. If council action is requested, please clearly indicate it, including the wording, so that it can be stated 

on the council meeting agenda. 
ADMINISTRATIVE LIAISON REPORT 

Bandshell/Performance Center Project Committee  Mr. Holderman  

Bellefonte Area Industrial Development Authority (BAIDA) Mr. Holderman  

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services  Mr. Rhoat   

Bellefonte Intervalley Chamber of Commerce Ms. Brooks  Submitted 

Bellefonte Police Pension Board Mr. Holderman  

Centre County Boroughs Association  Ms. Dann   

Centre County Government  Mr. Holderman  

CNET Board of Directors Mr. Holderman  

Governor’s Park  Mr. Holderman  

Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority Mr. Holderman  

Penn State University Sustainability Projects Mr. Holderman  

Shade Tree Commission Ms. Brooks  

Union Cemetery Association  Mr. Holderman  

Zoning Hearing Board Ms. Thompson  

AUTHORITIES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Borough Authority  Mr. D. Johnson   

Centre County Airport Authority  Mr. D. Johnson   

COMMISSIONS / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Civil Service Commission Mr. Brachbill  

Spring Creek Watershed Commission  Mr. Brachbill   

 SPECIAL COMMITTEES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Centre County Library Board  Ms. Cleeton Submitted 

Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) Public Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Talleyrand Park Committee  Ms. Sedgwick     

Workplace Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill Submitted 

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS / APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission (NVJPC) Ms. Thompson  

Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO)  Mr. D. Johnson   

 

X. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
Approval of Ordinance No. 04072025-01 Amendment to Chapter 108: Police Department. Motion/2nd to approve 
Ordinance No. 04072025-01 Amendment to Chapter 108: Police Department. 
Approval of Ordinance No. 04072025-02 Amendment to Chapter 482: Solid Waste. Motion/2nd to approve Ordinance 
No. 04072025-02 Amendment to Chapter 482: Solid Waste. 

Keystone Municipal Services Engagement Agreement for Recruitment Services for Bellefonte Borough. Motion/2nd to 
approve the Engagement Agreement for Recruitment Services for Bellefonte Borough, 

Memo- Selection of Laurel Asphalt for Stamped Crosswalks. FYI, no council action is requested. 

 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 

Information on the Bell proposed for Talleyrand Park. FYI, no council action is requested. 

Recommendation to the Planning Commission to limit the number of adult-oriented businesses in the Commercial 
Districts. Motion/2nd to recommend to the Planning Commission to limit the number of adult-oriented businesses 
in the Commercial Districts.  

 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting agenda.  Speakers 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 4 of 144



shall identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are 

limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 
 

XIII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 

The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM. 
 

The Council Public Comment Policy and the 2025 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 5 of 144



Outlook

Fw: Rep. Glenn "GT" Thomspon - Fiscal Year 2026 Appropriations Forms and Deadlines

From Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Date Tue 4/8/2025 11:48 AM
To Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov>

Alyssa:

Please add this to communications for the 4/21 meeting. Thank you,

Donald L. Holderman
Assistant Borough Manager
Bellefonte Borough
814-355-1501 extension 215

From: Arata, Brian <Brian.Arata@mail.house.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 8, 2025 10:34 AM
To: Arata, Brian <Brian.Arata@mail.house.gov>
Cc: Appropriations, PA15 <PA15.Appropriations@mail.house.gov>
Subject: Rep. Glenn "GT" Thomspon - Fiscal Year 2026 Appropriations Forms and Deadlines
 
Good morning:
 
The office of Congressman Glenn “GT” Thompson (PA-15) is now accepting programmatic, language, and
Community Project Funding (CPF) requests for Fiscal Year 2026 (FY’26). Please read through the following
guidance carefully prior to submitting an application.
 
For Community Project Funding Requests:
CPFs will be issued on a limited basis in the FY’26 Appropriations bills. Therefore, only CPF requests that address
the most critical and outstanding needs of local communities or provide a significant public good will be
considered. Submission of a request does not guarantee a project will be funded. All applicants for Fiscal Year 2025
CPFs are required to resubmit their application if they would like to be considered for a Fiscal Year 2026 CPF.
 
Each eligible Subcommittee of the House Committee on Appropriations has specific guidance community project
eligibility, along with the process for making a request. Please closely review the guidelines per each
subcommittee to ensure your project meets the requirements prior to submitting your application.  Should a
project fail to meet these requirements, the request cannot be considered. Any request that includes funding beyond
FY’26 cannot be considered.
 
The House Committee on Appropriations has issued the following guidance for CPFs within the following
subcommittees:

Agriculture, Rural Development, Food and Drug Administration, and Related Agencies
Commerce, Justice, Science, and Related Agencies
Energy and Water Development, and Related Agencies
Homeland Security
Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 6 of 144

https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/ag-fy26-request-guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-cjs-guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-ew-project-guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/hs-fy26-cpf-guidance-final.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-interior-cpf-guidance.pdf


Military Construction, Veterans Affairs, and Related Agencies
Transportation, and Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies

Transit Infrastructure Projects Guidance
Highway Infrastructure Projects Guidance
Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Guidance
Port Infrastructure Development Program Projects Guidance
Consolidated Rail Infrastructure and Safety Improvements (CRISI) Projects Guidance
Community Development Fund – Economic Development Initiative (EDI) Project Guidance

NOTE: Only states, territories, tribal governments, counties, cities/towns/local government
entities, and public colleges/universities are eligible for EDI funding. Nonprofit organizations are
not eligible for funding through this account in the FY26 CPF process.

 
Additionally, following the submission of your application, please send all letters of support – as well as any
additional supporting documentation you would like to be considered with your application – in an email to
PA15.Appropriations@mail.house.gov with the name of the project in the subject line.
 
To submit an application for Community Project Funding, please fill out THIS FORM by 4:00pm on Thursday,
April 24, 2025.
 
 
For Programmatic and Language Requests:
Please review the specific guidance issued by the House Committee on Appropriations for programmatic and
language requests.
 
To submit a request for programmatic funding or language, please fille out THIS FORM by 4:00pm on Thursday,
April 24, 2025.
 
 
All of this information is also available on Congressman Thompson’s website. If you have any questions, please
email PA15.Appropriations@mail.house.gov.
 
Thanks,
Brian
 
 
--
Brian M. Arata
Legislative Director
Office of Congressman Glenn “GT” Thompson (PA-15)
400 Cannon HOB | P: 202.225.5121

  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 7 of 144

https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/milcon-guidance-fy26.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-thud-tig-guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-thud-hip-guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-thud-aip-guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-thud-pidp-guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-thud-crisi-guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/evo-media-document/fy26-thud-edi-guidance.pdf
mailto:PA15.Appropriations@mail.house.gov
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=mYITktAiSU2NMHFw1YltmJNIHZvJj2xMg4hZFt2lR2VUNU9EUDk2TDJUSEFPWU1UT0xCUVI0TlQ2TS4u
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/FY25%20Programmatic%20and%20Language%20Requests%20Guidance.pdf
https://appropriations.house.gov/sites/evo-subsites/republicans-appropriations.house.gov/files/FY25%20Programmatic%20and%20Language%20Requests%20Guidance.pdf
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=mYITktAiSU2NMHFw1YltmJNIHZvJj2xMg4hZFt2lR2VURE0xQjJFUlQzUVBSVU1HSUVTRTlCRUlRSS4u
https://thompson.house.gov/services/fy-2026-appropriations-requests
mailto:PA15.Appropriations@mail.house.gov
http://thompson.house.gov/
http://thompson.house.gov/
https://republicans-agriculture.house.gov/
https://republicans-agriculture.house.gov/
https://www.facebook.com/CongressmanGT
https://www.facebook.com/CongressmanGT
https://www.youtube.com/@CongressmanGT
https://www.youtube.com/@CongressmanGT
https://x.com/CongressmanGT/
https://x.com/CongressmanGT/
https://instagram.com/congressman_gt/
https://instagram.com/congressman_gt/


DRAF T 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

APPLICATION PREPARATION SCHEDULE 
 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
FFY 2025 

 
 
Public Hearing Posting/Publication Date:  April 16, 2025 
-Centre Daily Times 
 
First Public Hearing  May 19, 2025 
301 N. Spring St., 1st Floor Meeting Room    Monday, 6:00 PM 
Bellefonte, PA 16823 
 

   Project Selection  June 16, 2025 
301 N. Spring St. 1st Floor Meeting Room   Monday, 7:30 PM 
Bellefonte, PA 16823 
 
Project Selection – Centre County*  July 29, 2025 
Willowbank Building  10:00 AM 
420 Holmes Street, Room 146, Bellefonte   
 
Final Public Hearing Publication Date   August 6, 2025 
-CDT  
 
Final Public Hearing   August 28, 2025 
Willowbank Building        Thursday, 6:00 PM  
420 Holmes Street, Room 146, Bellefonte  
 
Approval of Resolution to Submit Application – Centre Co* September 9, 2025 
Willowbank Building         Tuesday, 10:00 AM  
420 Holmes Street, Room 146, Bellefonte 
 
Application Submission  October 31, 2025 
 
 

* Denotes formal action by Centre County Board of Commissioners 

 FFY 2025 Allocations: 
Bellefonte Borough     $116,000 

   

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 8 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 9 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 10 of 144



 

 
Update on music video filmed in the fall in Talleyrand Park 

 
 

In October of 2024 The Happy Valley Adventure Bureau asked if a crew could 
film a music video in Talleyrand Park. The video was done with regular park 

visitors and a cast over a weekend and was released on April 10, 2025.   
 

It was filmed by Livia Beasley with Pixel and Pebble working with Children’s 
Media Association, and the Aspen Institute.  

 
You will see the park and Bellefonte in the second half of the short video, the song 

is called Clap Song (Earth is Home). 
 

 Please view and share the link: 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EXihCZOP0wU 

  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 11 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 12 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 13 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 14 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 15 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 16 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 17 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 18 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 19 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 20 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 21 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 22 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 23 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 24 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 25 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 26 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 27 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 28 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 29 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 30 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 31 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 32 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 33 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 34 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 35 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 36 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 37 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 38 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 39 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 40 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 41 of 144



 

 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

                           Special Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 

April 2, 2025 - 7:00 p.m. 
301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  - Council President Barbara Dann 

The April 2, 2025 special meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier 

     Mr. Randall Brachbill  

     Ms. Deborah Cleeton, Pro Tempore   

     Ms. Barbara Dann, President 

     Mr. Douglas Johnson, Vice President 

     Ms. Shawna McKean 

     Ms. Rita Purnell- EXCUSED 

     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick - EXCUSED    

     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

     Mr. Christian Larson, Jr. Council Member- EXCUSED 

     Ms. Jalyn Meckley,  Jr. Council Member- EXCUSED 

     Mayor Buddy Johnson- EXCUSED 

   

STAFF PRESENT  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official 

action on it with some exceptions. The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real 

emergencies. Council may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. 

The Council should state the reason why the action item is being added to the agenda. Council 

may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

None 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it 

has been duly made and seconded. The order of comment will be public comment and then council 

comment including, proposed amendments by council members. If amendments are proposed to 

the original motion, the public will then only comment on the amendment(s) before final votes are 

taken. You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit representative, business owner, or an official 

representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify themselves by name and 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 42 of 144

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 2, 2025 

Page 2 

 

 

street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) 

minutes. 

None 

 

VI.  EXECUTIVE SESSION - Personnel 

 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

Council formal designation of Don Holderman as a Consultant to handle Borough Manager 

duties on an interim basis. 

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Brachbill seconded to approve Don Holderman as a Consultant to 

handle Borough Manager duties on an interim basis. Discussion included (unintelligible).  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned to (unintelligible – please make sure microphones are on and that you 

speak loudly and clearly into the microphone when speaking) and McKean seconded. Roll call 

vote. Motion to approve the addition/amendment carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               EXCUSED Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           EXCUSED 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Brachbill seconded to approve Don Holderman as a Consultant to 

handle Borough Manager duties on an interim basis, with amendments to the motion. Roll call 

vote.  Amended motion to approve Don Holderman as Interim Borough Manager carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               EXCUSED Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           EXCUSED 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Removal of Signer from Northwest Bank Accounts.  

 

Sedgwick motioned and Johnson seconded to remove Ralph Stewart as a signer from all 

associated accounts due to retirement. Tosti-Vasey amended the motion but her 

amendment was unintelligible. The amendment was approved via “friendly motion”. Roll 

call vote. The amended motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               EXCUSED Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           EXCUSED 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 43 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 2, 2025 

Page 3 

 

 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting 

agenda. Speakers shall identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the 

Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 

NONE 

  

IX. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

NONE 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT   

 

Call for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded. The meeting 

adjourned at 7:32 pm.  

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 44 of 144



 

 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 

April 7, 2025 - 7:30 p.m. 
301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER (Council President Barbara Dann) The April 7, 2025 meeting of the 

Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier 

     Mr. Randall Brachbill  

     Ms. Deborah Cleeton, Pro Tempore   

     Ms. Barbara Dann, President 

     Mr. Douglas Johnson, Vice President– Zoom 

     Ms. Shawna McKean 

     Ms. Rita Purnell 

     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick – Zoom 

     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

     Mr. Christian Larson, Jr. Council Member 

     Ms. Jalyn Meckley,  Jr. Council Member 

     Mayor Buddy Johnson 

   

STAFF PRESENT              Mr. Bill Witmer, Police Chief 

     Ms. Gina Thompson, Zoning, Planning & HARB Adm. 

     Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 

   

STAFF PRESENT  Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 

    Bill Witmer, Police Chief 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official 

action on it with some exceptions. The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real 

emergencies. Council may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. 

The Council should state the reason why the action item is being added to the agenda. Council 

may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

 Mr. Johnson suggests adding the opening of bids for the stamped crosswalk project, under 

the heading “Old Business”. 

 

Johnson motioned to add this item to the agenda, Brachbill seconded, no further discussion, roll 

call vote and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 45 of 144

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 7, 2025 

Page 2 

 

 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Ms. Tosti-Vasey suggested to add under “Communications” the additional discussion of a 

potential free PHRC training opportunity as an action item.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned to add this item to the agenda, Purnell seconded, no further discussion, 

roll call vote and motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it 

has been duly made and seconded. The order of comment will be public comment and then council 

comment including, proposed amendments by council members. If amendments are proposed to 

the original motion, the public will then only comment on the amendment(s) before final votes are 

taken. You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit representative, business owner, or an official 

representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify themselves by name and 

street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) 

minutes. 

NONE 

 

VI.  COMMUNICATIONS (written) 

Announcement: Personnel Committee met on 3/31/2025 and 04/03/2025 to discuss personnel 

matters. 

 

Concerns regarding Parking Enforcement in Downtown Bellefonte. Complaint was provided 

to the Police Department and Parking Enforcement. Chief Whitmer ensures that the concerns 

are being addressed. No council action required. 

 

Bellefonte Area School District, At a Glance and Friday Coffee Break Newsletters. 

Suggestion by ____ to add BASD website link to the Borough Council webpage. No council 

action required.  

 

Council has been invited to the Independent Home Health Ribbon Cutting Ceremony on 

Tuesday, April 8th, 2025 at 11:00 am. 220 W High Street, Suite 1. No council action 

required.  

 

Ralph Stewart’s resignation from Centre County Airport Authority. No council action 

required. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 46 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 7, 2025 

Page 3 

 

 

 

Adult evening classes at CPI (Central Pennsylvania Institute of Science and Technology). 

Tosti-Vasey suggests the addition of these classes to the Borough Council webpage as well. 

No council action required.  

 

Public Accommodations Training. More information will be provided to Council once 

available. Options for the training are in-person, hybrid, or fully virtual. The training will be 

completely free and focused on reviewing and implementing protections and 

accommodations for the public/individuals with a disability which are outlined by the PA 

Commonwealth and by federal laws.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned for administration to contract the PHRC to further discuss/set up these 

trainings. Cleeton seconded. No further discussion, roll call vote and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a 

single motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council 

request specific items to be removed for separate action. 

 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 

1. Finance Budget v. Actual February 2025 

2. Finance Budget v. Actual Summary February 2025 

3. General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes March 17, 2025 

4. Finance Treasurer’s Report February 2025 

5. Finance Voucher Summary February 2025 

Brachbill motioned to approve the above consent agenda, Tosti-Vasey seconded. No further 

discussion, roll call vote and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

VIII. REPORTS   

Mayor Johnson  

The second Community Advisory meeting was a major success. Met with some of our PA 

elected officials to discuss community affairs. The BASD School Board President spoke 

about the new elementary school which is being built, discussed funding ideas, and 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 47 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 7, 2025 

Page 4 

 

 

encouraged the development of the new school as a community-oriented project, and not just 

a new building. Attendance at these meetings is open to any member of the community - 

members of the community are encouraged to reach out to Mayor Johnson if they are 

interested in attending in the future.  

 

Junior Council Member Report (Mr. Larson) 

The 4th quarter has started at BASD. Red and White student newspaper March edition now 

available. Over $1000 was raised by student council this year for Mini-THON. BAHS spring 

musical, Fiddler on the roof, was a success. Recent career prep presentations at BAHS were a 

success.  

 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 

Recommended for approval (Specific motions are stated in the OCA memo): 

Preliminary/Final Plan for Centre County Community Services Building Parking Lot 

Expansion 

 

Preliminary/Final Plan for Lot Addition of Land of Edward S. & Kristine K. Ranio.  

 

Call for a motion to approve the two above SALDO projects which are recommended for 

approval by the Planning Commission. Tosti-Vasey motioned, McKean seconded. Further 

discussion included: questions regarding Budget v. Actual report, confusing acronyms.  Roll call 

vote and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Items of interest:  

HARB will not meet on April 8, 2025. The next HARB meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, 

April 22, 2025 at 8:30AM.  

 

The Planning Commission will meet on Monday, April 14, 2025, at 5:00PM in the Large 

Meeting Room.  

 

IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

Sunnyside Paddle Park Submerged Lands License Agreement. Call for a motion to approve 

the Sunnyside Paddle Park Submerged Lands License Agreement. 

  

Brachbill motioned. McKean seconded. No further discussion, roll call vote and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 48 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 7, 2025 

Page 5 

 

 

 

CATA Bellefonte B-Line Service for Fiscal Year 2026. On May 5th David Lomison, Centre 

County Transportation Director, will be in attendance at the Work Session. CATA has 

already sent their request for funding for the next fiscal year.  No Council action required.  

 

Approval of Resolution No. 04072025-01 Adopting the Police Department’s updated 

Policies. Call for a motion to approve Resolution No. 04072025.  

 

Cleeton motioned. Tosti-Vasey Seconded. No further discussion, roll call vote, and motion 

carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Delegate and alternate for PSAB Annual Conference voting. Due to Doug Johnson not 

attending the Conference, a new Alternate will need to be selected. Call for a motion to 

appoint new delegates for the upcoming PSAB conference.  

 

Johnson motioned. McKean seconded. No further discussion, roll call vote, and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 

 Spring Street Stamped Crosswalk bid openings. The bid from Pavement Impressions INC. 

totaled $64,393.43. Royal Asphalt’s bid totaled $93,183.21 Call for a motion to have Council 

review these bids and select the more cost-effective option.  

 

Johnson motioned to review the bids. Brachbill seconded. No further discussion, roll call vote, and 

motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Deb Burger, Bellefonte Borough Tax Collector, appointment to the Centre County Tax 

Collection Committee. Call for a motion to appoint Deb Burger to the Centre County Tax 

Collection Committee. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 49 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 7, 2025 

Page 6 

 

 

Cleeton motioned to appoint Deb Berger to the Centre County Tax Collection Committee.  Johnson 

seconded. No further discussion, roll call vote, and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Letter from Chief Witmer requesting Ordinance amendment Chapter 108 Police. Call for a 

motion to approve this Ordinance Amendment.  

 

Johnson motioned to approve the Ordinance Amendment. McKean seconded. Tosti-Vasey asked 

for clarification from Chief Whitmer about whether or not the Borough Code was in conflict with 

other state laws and ordinances. Roll call vote, and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Letter from Chief Witmer requesting to establish a Promotion Eligibility List. Call for a motion 

to approve the Promotion Eligibility list for the Borough Police.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned to approve the Promotion Eligibility List. Brachbill seconded. No further 

discussion, roll call vote, and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Chief Witmer’s request to establish a new Eligibility List for the Bellefonte Borough Police 

Department for 2025. Call for a motion to approve the new Eligibility List for the Borough 

Police.  

 

Brachbill motioned to approve the new Eligibility List. Johnson seconded. No further discussion, 

roll call vote, and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 50 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 7, 2025 

Page 7 

 

 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting 

agenda. Speakers shall identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the 

Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 

NONE 

 

XII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

 

Purnell: continued concerns over the groundwater pollution issue which she has brought 

before Council before. Encouraged council to consider this matter more seriously and to 

collaborate more closely with our neighboring boroughs so that we could prevent any such 

groundwater issues from affecting Bellefonte as well. Other council members suggested that 

our current water testing procedures and management process are adequate in terms of 

preventing an issue with PFOS - they also encouraged Mrs. Purnell will attend the Water 

Authority meeting to potentially voice her concerns there.  

 

Cleeton: A reminder that April 6-12 is National Library Week - encouragement for the 

community to visit their local library! 

 

Holderman: Repair work has started on the Governor's Park restrooms. Street sweeping and 

cleaning to begin throughout may around the borough, starting in the Parkview Heights area 

and moving out. Spring leaf collection to take place around the same time as Riff-Raff week.  

 

Johnson: A reminder for everyone to have a real ID by May 7, 2025. You cannot fly 

anywhere without your passport.  

 

McKean: April is Child Abuse Awareness Month. If you see something, say something, CYS 

and the local police are always a good resource.  

 

Tosti-Vasey: April 12 is slotted to be a watershed clean-up day sponsored by the Clearwater 

Conservatory. If you are interested in helping, contact Jenna from Clearwater Conservatory, 

she can be reached at 814-237-0400.  

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT   

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned to adjourn the meeting. Johnson (?) seconded. Meeting was adjourned at 

8:13 PM.  

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 51 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 52 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 53 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 54 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 55 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 56 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 57 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 58 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 59 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 60 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 61 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 62 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 63 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 64 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 65 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 66 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 67 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 68 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 69 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 70 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 71 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 72 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 73 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 74 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 75 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 76 of 144



Finance and Administration Committee Report 

 

Committee met on 04/15/25 @ 5:30 in the Oak Room  

Present:  Deb Cleeton, Barbara Dann, Shawna McKean, Johanna Sedgwick, Don Holderman 

 

 

Don proposed the following suggestions to update Borough staffing:  

 Proposed position description for “Administrator for Grants & Special Projects and Activities”, 
administrative decision for the position to be filled by Julie Brooks; 

 Solicit for a part-time position (20 hours/week) to assist Lori McGowan (Finance Director); 
 Post (internal/external) opening for Assistant Superintendent of Public Works. 

Committee agreed that all three proposals would result in full staffing for the Borough prior to the hiring 
of a new Borough Manager 

Per request from Council on 03/17/25, Committee reviewed grant writing proposals from Delta 
Development, One+ Strategies and Atlas.  With the position of Administrator for Grants to be filled 
internally, there is no need to outsource these services. 

Committee recommends contracting with Keystone Municipal Solutions to assist in search for new 
Borough Manager.  The Committee is asking Council to approve the Keystone Municipal Solutions 
Engagement Agreement for Recruitment Services for Bellefonte Borough. 

 

Next Meeting: 

05/20/25, 5:30 – 6:30 in the Oak Room 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 77 of 144



 

Mount Nittany Health Week 

Proclamation 

WHEREAS, the week of May 11th-17th, 2025, is recognized as National Hospital Week, a time to celebrate 

the vital contributions of hospitals, health systems, and healthcare workers  to our communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mount Nittany Health, with its 2,500 employees, including more than 220 providers, has 

provided more than 120 years of service and outstanding healthcare to our region; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mount Nittany Health team is a trusted partner in bringing compassionate, expert care in 

serving the healthcare needs of our families, neighbors, and friends; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mount Nittany Health welcomes all patients, visitors, staff, providers, students, and volunteers without 

exception, embracing the values of teamwork and respect; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Borough of Bellefonte and I, Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor of Bellefonte Borough, 

Centre County, Pennsylvania, do hereby proclaim May 11th-17th, 2025, as Mount Nittany Health Week and 

commends the board, leadership and entire Mount Nittany Health team for its record of service to the region. 

 

Dated: April 21st, 2025       

           __________________________________________ 

               Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor  

         Borough of Bellefonte 

 

 

  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 78 of 144



   
 

   
 

  BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
March 2025 

 
 

HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
 

 
• Renovations to the Police Department are complete. 

 
• All officers completed HAZMAT training. 

o Thank you to Tim Schreffler for providing the training. 
 

• All officers completed annual update training. 
o Thank you to all the agencies that participated: 
CAC, CYS, Patton Township PD, Centre County Sheriff’s 
Department, Ferguson Township PD, the District Attorney’s 
Office, MAGLOCLEN, Centre County Probation Department. 

 
• School Resource Officer Luse was recognized in the Spring 2025 

edition of The Journal of School Safety. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 79 of 144



   
 

   
 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT    
MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 

OFFENSES 
OCCURRED MONTH 2025 

YTD 
Alarms 8 21 
Assault 2 4 
Child Abuse 1 7 
Criminal Mischief 1 4 
Disorderly Conduct 8 26 
Domestics 9 21 
Drug Related 2 7 
DUI 2 3 
Harassment 5 18 
Suspicious Activity 12 30 
Theft 8 13 
Trespass 0 3 
All Others 370 1,063 
TOTAL 428 1,250 

 
CALLS MONTH 2025 YTD 

Handled by BPD 424 1,246 
Off Duty 4 20 
TOTAL 428 1,250 

 
ARRESTS MONTH 2025 YTD 

Felony 0 5 
Misdemeanor 5 35 
Summary 7 15 
TOTAL 12 57 

 
MILEAGE MONTH YTD 

34-1 1,020 62,736 
34-2 418 88,530 
34-3 0 125,932 
34-4 821 86,097 
34-5 716 6,862 
34-6 241 36,990 

 
 
 
 
 

 
TRAFFIC MONTH 2025 YTD 

Stops 66 159 
Citations Filed 79 130 

 
PAYMENTS 
RECEIVED MONTH 2025 

YTD 
MDJ $ 580.81 $3,330.99 

Probation $ 457.16 $1,728.16 

Other  $ 180.00 $1,559.28 

TOTAL $1,217.97 $6,618.43 

 
ACCIDENTS MONTH 2025 YTD 

Reportable 3 9 
Non-Reportable 9 29 
TOTAL 12 38 

 
OFFICERS’ TIME MONTH 2025 YTD 

Regular Hours 1386 4427 
Overtime Hours 36 90.5 
Reimbursed 
Overtime 0 0 

Training (exclude in total) 174 316 
TOTAL 1422 3237.5 

 
SRO MONTH 2025 YTD 

Number of Incidents 35 118 
Arrests  1 1 
Traffic (School Zone) 6 13 
Hours Worked 340 964 

 
PARKING MONTH 2025 YTD 

Hours Worked 183.5 512.5 
Tickets Issued 271 630 
Revenue $ 16,400.92 $37,656.84 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 80 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 81 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 82 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 83 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 84 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 85 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 86 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 87 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 88 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 89 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 90 of 144



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM:  Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator  
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE:  For Council Meeting April 21, 2025 

 

 
If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do not hesitate 

to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov or 814-313-1573. 

PLANNING: 
 
The next Planning Commission meeting for Monday April 14th had to be canceled last minute due to 
there not being a quorum.  
 
The meeting has been rescheduled for (tomorrow) Tuesday, April 22nd at 6:00 p.m. in the large meeting 
room. The agenda for the meeting is in your packet. There are two plans for review. I can report on them 
more in depth at the next council meeting, if you wish.  
 

 
ZONING: 

 
Zoning inquiries, research, and projects are increasing. Since the last meeting, I’ve permitted six new 
businesses in the downtown commercial district, along with processing other types of permits. 
 
Short-term rental information and revenue data 
 

21 addresses / 24 total STRs 
• 6 – in R-1 Residential (nonconforming) 
• 7 – in R-2 Residential (nonconforming 

• 10 – in Central Business District 
• 1 – in Waterfront Business District 

 
There are three new STRs for 2025 (included in the numbers above): 

• 210 W Cherry, Apt 2 
• 113 S Spring, Apt 3 
• 113 S Spring, Apt 5 

 
24 units  X $130 / per unit = 

$3,120 revenue for the 2025 STR renewals 
 

 
HARB: 

 
HARB will meet on (tomorrow) Tuesday, April 22 at 8:30 a.m. in the Oak Room. The agenda for the 
meeting is in your packet.  
 
 

OCA UPDATES: 
 
On April 9, I was invited by Liz Piazza, Broker at Kissinger Bigatel & Brower, to present to the KBB 
realtors about current developments in Bellefonte. I provided a fact sheet outlining ongoing and 
upcoming zoning and planning initiatives, as well as property maintenance and rental information. The 
presentation was well-received, with active engagement and thoughtful questions from attendees. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 91 of 144

mailto:gthompson@bellefontepa.gov


Address Zoning District STR Type Maximum number of 
nights

Allegheny N 112, Apt 2 and Apt 3 CBD two apartments n/a
Bishop W 125, Apt A CBD One apartment n/a
Cherry W 210, Apt 2 CBD two bedroom apartment n/a

High E 113, Apt 2 CBD apartment n/a
High E 119, Apt 2 & Apt 4 CBD two apartments, 1 bed each n/a

High E 132 CBD apartment (1/2 of duplex. Other side is used as 
long-term rental) 

n/a

Spring S 113, Apt 3 & Apt 5 CBD 2 units -- two bedroom apartments n/a

Curtin E 719 R-1 nonconforming house, owner occupied 144 

Monroe N 391 R-1 nonconforming carraige house on parcel - 1 bed / 1 bath 71 

Shope 517 R-1 nonconforming unit attached to main house - 1 bed / 1 bath 60 

Summit 1304 R-1 nonconforming transient, non-owner occupied 138

Beaver E 530 R-1 nonconforming house, owner occupied 118 

Linn E 408 R-1 nonconforming house, owner occupied 60 

Bishop E 616 R-2 nonconforming transient, non-owner occupied 60

Burgundy E 707 R-2 nonconforming half of duplex, owner lives in other half 
(considered owner occupied)

67

Curtin E 191 R-2 nonconforming house, owner occupied 60

Decatur 211 R-2 nonconforming accessorty structure, same parcel as owner 92

Halfmoon 507 R-2 nonconforming house, owner occupied 60

Lamb E 227 R-2 nonconforming Adjacent house ?
Ridge N 222 R-2 nonconforming MIL suite above house, 1 bed/ 1 bath 60 

Water S 136 WBD house - 2 bedrooms n/a

Bellefonte Borough Short Term Rental Permit Log

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 92 of 144



AGENDA 

HISTORICAL AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
DATE: APRIL 22ND 2025 TIME: 8:30AM 

OAK ROOM (SMALL MEETING ROOM), 1ST FLOOR 
301 N. SPRING STREET, BELLEFONTE 

 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  
 

Attendance: 
Members Alternates Guests 
Walt Schneider, Chair Amy Kelchner  
Megan Tooker, Vice Chair Robert Wagner (CRCA)  
Philip Ruth vacancy  
Mike Leakey   
Marc McMaster   
Maria Day   
Gay Dunne   

 
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: February 25, 2025 

The meetings scheduled for March 11th and March 25th were canceled due to a lack of 
projects requiring formal review. 

 
Public Comment: 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:  
 
Project Review:  
 176 East Curtin – Renovation of existing one-story concrete block garage into 1 1/2 

story dwelling. Conceptual design only.  
 
Administrative Approvals:  
 347 E. Linn Street (Stewart) – roof replacement and repair: shingles, rubber EPDM, 

paint and repair dormers, replace facia board, repaint woodwork 
 

 120 W. High Street (Elks) - Replace the gutters on the front porch of the building. 
Current gutters are half round and will be replaced with half round gutters, same 
color. 
 

 378 Phoenix Avenue (KV Nails) – Signage for new business. Size: 24” x 89”, 
AlumPanel store front signage that is matching other signage background colors in 
the plaza, with KV Nails as the text in black and light blue shadowing effect. Maker: 
Signs of Excellence. 
 

 380 Phoenix Avenue (Revival Health & Rehab) – Signage for new business. Size: 
24” x 89” and 11” x 46” (two sided), Colors: beige and black. AlumPanel sign on front 
of building above entrance and two-sided AlumPanel sign on the shopping center 
ground sign by road. Maker: Pine Creek Designs, Chris Weaver. 
 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 93 of 144



Page 2 of 2 

Information / Discussion Items:  
 Frank Grumbine, Community Preservation Coordinator from PHMC, will be here to 

discuss any questions regarding the new Historic District Design Guidelines and 
provide guidance on how to functionally implement them.  

 
 I continue to work with Centre Region Code Administration on property maintenance 

issues. If you have any concerns about a specific property, please let me know. 
 

 List of new businesses in downtown commercial district this year so far:  
o Bishop W 120 – Astrid Glo Beauty, LLC 
o Allegheny N 110 – Smoke Shop 
o High E 117 – Lucid Ink 
o Allegheny N 105 – Midnight Munchies 
o Spring N 105 – Happy Valley Cleaning 
o Allegheny S 107 – Every Season Home & Living 
o Phoenix 378 – KV Nails 
o Potter S 167 – The Parlor / Belle City Bites 
o High E 111, Suite 1 – Family Building Adoptions 
o Bishop W 106 – Shaky Hands Coffee Shop 
o High W 221, Suite 1200 – Overcomer Medical Clinic 
o Phoenix 380 – Revival Health & Rehab 

 
 Don Holderman has been hired as the interim Borough Manager until a replacement 

is found. He is part-time and works approximately 15 hours a week in the office.  
 

Old Business:  
 At the March 3, 2025 meeting, Council approved the revised designs of Building 1 

(hotel) and Building 2 (garage, condo, commercial) of the Bellefonte Waterfront 
Project. 

 
 I’m still working on amending the sign ordinance to remove certain types of signs 

and lights from Historic District. 
 

 We had discussed at the last meeting adding language in the ordinance for an “after 
the fact” application fee for projects that are done without prior approval. This fee 
would be significantly greater than the normal application fee. I haven’t had a chance 
yet to look into this, but I will try to in the next few months.  
 

New Business:  
 Gay Dunne resignation from HARB 
 Appointment of Amy Kelchner from alternate to permanent member 
 Recommendations for HARB alternate, Planning Commission, and Zoning Hearing 

Board vacancies.  
 

Adjournment: 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 94 of 144



AGENDA 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION  
LARGE MEETING ROOM, ARMORY BUILDING 

301 NORTH SPRING STREET, BELLEFONTE 
DATE: APRIL 22ND *, 2025 TIME: 5:00 P.M. 

* rescheduled from April 14 meeting 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL:  

Mr. Robert Dannaker, Chairman 
Mr. James Mills, Secretary 
Mr. Mark Edwards  
Mr. Chris Morelli 
Mr. David Lomison  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: March 18, 2025 meeting minutes 
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES:  
 
Preliminary/Final Plan for Mach-1 Slalom Clubhouse 

• Pages 1-2: Transmittal and Application (January 23, 2025) 
• Pages 3-6: LDP Review and Comment by Chris Schnure, CCPCDO (February 3, 2025) 
• Pages 7-12: Century Engineering comments and revisions to County review (March 25, 

2025) 
• Pages 13-14: County Conservation District email re: E&S Plan (February 20, 2025) 
• Pages 15: Borough Engineer email confirming that Stormwater Plan is not required 

(February 20, 2025) 
• Pages 16-24: Lease Agreement between tenant, Mach-1, and property owner, Graymont. 

(Submitted to PC March 25, 2025) 
• Page 25: UPDATED Mach-1 Slalom Clubhouse LDP, based on County review. (March 25, 

2025) 
 
Preliminary/Final Plan for Lot Addition from Lands of Cuz Holdings, LLC to Lands of Mount 
Nittany Medical Center 

• Pages 1 Transmittal and Application (March 28, 2025) 
• Pages 2-6: LDP Review and Comment by Chris Schnure, CCPCDO (April 7, 2025) 
• Pages 7-13: HRG Comment response letter (April 14, 2025) 
• Pages 14-15: Updated electronic LDP (April 11, 2025) 

 
NEW BUSINESS & OLD BUSINESS: None 
 
ORDINANCE ADDITIONS / UPDATES / AMENDMENTS: None 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 Zoning Hearing Board, HARB, and Planning Commission vacancies – If there is anyone 

interested in serving on these boards, please have them reach out to Gina Thompson.   
 
 Bellefonte Elementary: County Conservation NPDES Inspection Report No. 2 

 
 Personnel: Don Holderman has stepped in as Interim Borough Manager until a new 

manager is hired. He works 15 hours a week in the office.  
 

 On April 9, I gave a presentation to KBB Realtors covering various Bellefonte projects, 
including land development, zoning, HARB, rentals, property maintenance, and more. 

 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT: ____1ST ____2ND   TIME: ____________ 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 95 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 96 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 97 of 144



 

Ordinance ad hoc Committee 
 
The Ordinance ad hoc Committee comprises Randy Brachbill, Rita Purnell, and Joanne Tosti-
Vasey, with Barbara Dann as an ex-officio member. We have met twice – on March 27 and April 
10. This committee will meet on the second Thursday of each month following the 
Environmental and Parks and Recreation Committee meetings. There will be no July meeting. 
 
We have preliminarily looked at Bellefonte’s ordinances and discussed what we should look at. 
We decided to review ordinances that the borough has either had questions about or that have 
come up through the administration’s work. Based on this discussion, we have selected the 
following ordinances to review: 
 

• Air Pollution Ordinance to determine if it should be revamped or retired. 
• Bee-Keeping Ordinance 
• Refuse and Recycling Ordinance 
• Solar Ordinance – review the sizing of ground-level solar installations to more accurately 

reflect the size of the property where the solar installation would be installed. 
• Zoning and Planning Ordinances. Gina Thompson has indicated that these ordinances 

need to be updated. Since the sign ordinance was approved for removal from zoning, 
zoning might be the place to start reviewing and revising so as to have only one public 
hearing on this Ordinance. 

 
In addition, the Sewage-related ordinances are being reviewed and updated by the Water 
Authority. They will come to the Council for approval once the Water Authority makes their 
recommendations. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 98 of 144



 

Parks and Recreation Committee Report 
April 10, 2025 

 
The Parks and Recreation Committee met on April 10, 2025. Joanne Tosti-Vasey (chair), Randy 
Brachbill, Julie Brooks, and Andrea Murrell (representing the Talleyrand Park Committee) 
attended. 
 
We watched a video of parks in Centre County created by the Aspen Institute that was released 
on April 10, 2025. There is a section of this video that highlights Talleyrand Park. Please see the 
memo in the Council packet with the video link. We have requested that this be shown at the 
April 21 Council meeting. 
 
Several issues related to our parks were discussed. The following plans were made: 

• There will be a walkthrough of Talleyrand Park by the Parks and Recreation 
Committee and the Talleyrand Park Committee on May 21, 2025, at 4 pm in 
Talleyrand Park. This walkthrough, as usual, will review maintenance issues within 
the park. 

• There will be a walkthrough of the rest of the parks at the June 12 Parks and 
Recreation Committee meeting at 3:30 pm. We will meet at the borough building 
and start the walkthrough from there. 

• Julie Brooks is applying for bare root trees for this fall. The grant will allow us up to 
20 trees for the right-of-ways and the parks. She will look at the list of tree 
possibilities, create a spreadsheet of canopy size, and send it to the Parks and Rec 
Committee as well as the Talleyrand Park Committee representative (Andrea Murrell 
and Talley Fisher) before May 21 so that we have that information available for the 
Talleyrand Park walkthrough. We will then use that list to determine if these trees 
suit the other parks. 

• An Air Force Leadership group is interested in doing something for the borough. Last 
year, they did some structural painting in Governor’s Park. After reviewing some 
possibilities, we suggested they steel brush, power wash the railings around 
Talleyrand Park, and then paint as needed.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 99 of 144



We heard about some possible grants for the parks. Julie is crafting the grants for us. They include:  
o ADA ramp into the Train Station at Talleyrand Park. The ramp would be created at the 2nd 

door on the park side of the building, which is currently unused. Hoffman and Leakey have 
estimated the cost to be $90,000, and we are applying for the grant through the Happy 
Valley Adventure Bureau. 

o The fence at the end of the raceway in Talleyrand Park is in poor shape and needs to be 
replaced. Julie Brooks is looking for an estimated replacement cost of either another 
wooden fence or a black metal fence similar to the black metal elsewhere in the park. We 
still need to decide where to submit the grant application to. We are considering either a 
2025 CDBG grant now that the suspension bridge has enough funding for its repairs or a 
Lowe’s grant for the lumber or metal railing materials. 

• The Talleyrand Park Committee is discussing and seeking volunteers to weed in the wildflower 
section of the peninsula between the end of the suspension bridge and the Sculpture Garden. 

• The batting cage still needs the treated lumber to off-gas. So, the painting of the cage will be done in 
2026. 

• The Historical Railroad Society has requested to place a copy of the Liberty Bell under the eaves of 
the Train Station. It is one of several that will be located throughout the state. As this area is under 
the purview of the local Chamber, we suggested that the Chamber, rather than the borough, handle 
this request. We talked about placing it in the Sculpture Garden. However, we were told that this 
group wants a more prominent location and have asked for it to be placed in a protected area under 
the eaves of the Train Station. More information and a description of the bell is included in the 
council packet. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 100 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 101 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 102 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 103 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 104 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 105 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 106 of 144



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 107 of 144



1 
 

Centre County Library & Historical Museum Board of Trustees Meeting 
Historical Museum/Hybrid 
Thursday, January 23, 2025  

6:00 pm 
 
Trustees Present: Deborah Cleeton, Carl Inglesby, Vickie Barnett, Bryce Taylor, Justin Miller, 
Mary Prendergast, Kathleen Gomez 
Trustees Absent:  
Staff Present: Michele Reese, Denise Sticha 
Guests Present: Rhonda Rumbaugh  
Call to Order: Carl Inglesby, President, called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm. 
 
Public Comments and Correspondence:  
 
Election of Officers 
President -  Gomez made a motion to elect Inglesby for President. Seconded by Barnett. 
Motion carried. 
Vice President - Miller volunteered to take the position. Miller made a motion to nominate 
himself as Vice President. Seconded by Taylor. Motion carried. 
Secretary/Treasurer - Barnett made a motion to elect Cleeton as Secretary/Treasurer. 
Seconded by Prendergast. Motion carried. 
 
Election to fill McCloskey term -Sticha presented the two nominees, Jennifer Rosson and 
Meredith Welshan, to fill the term that was vacated by McCloskey’s early resignation. The 
position is an at large vacancy.  Cleeton made a motion to elect Jennifer Rosson to the board 
to fill the vacancy left by Pam McCloskey. Seconded by Barnett. Motion carried. 
 
Consent Agenda: Taylor made a motion to approve the December 2024 minutes as corrected. 
Seconded by Barnett. Motion carried. Taylor made a motion to approve the Director’s 
December 2024 Operations Report. Seconded by Prendergast. Motion carried. 
 
Finance Report and Investment Summary:  Sticha there were no surprises at the end of the 
year. No funds needed to be withdrawn from the investments during last year. This is the last 
year for using Paul Link, and the Board will need to decide whether to continue on with Link or 
to bid it out. Cleeton made a motion to approve the Finance Report for December 2024.  
Seconded by Barnett. Motion carried.  
Barnett made a motion to approve the Investment Summary. Seconded by Taylor. Motion 
carried. 
 
Directors Report: - 
Sticha discussed the two new pilots that Schlow will be rolling out in the near future. These 
pilots were discussed at our Management Team meeting and staff decided they did not want to 
participate with these pilots. The  first pilot is the use of patrons library card and the need to 
have their library card with them. The second initiative is to add an extended use fee when 
books have not been returned after a certain period of time. Discussion was held regarding the 
process of the fee being added to a patrons account and late return of items checked out. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 108 of 144



2 
 

Memory Lab- The Memory Lab will be relocated to the Bellefonte branch once the high counter 
has been removed and all of the equipment has been received. The hours will be expanded for 
the use of the Memory Lab once it has been set up and in operation. Sticha stated that she 
would like to name the room where the Memory Lab was located in the Boardroom, and hold 
future meetings in the room. 
 
40th Anniversary of the Young Authors and Illustrators Competition - Sticha stated that the 
date of the competition award presentation is the same date of April board meeting. She would 
like to change the date of the meeting  or have someone attend the competition and miss the 
meeting. Taylor suggested changing the date of the meeting so board members could attend 
the ceremony. Taylor asked if an April meeting was needed since the board was meeting in 
March and May. Discussion was held regarding the meetings and the plans that Megan 
Strommer has for that evening. Taylor made a motion to cancel the April meeting so Board 
members could attend the 40th Anniversary of the Young Authors event. Seconded by 
Cleeton. Motion carried. 
 
New Business: 
Committee and representative appointments 
Federation Board ( 3) - Deborah Cleeton, Bryce Taylor, Vickie Barnett  
District Advisory Council (1 and 1 backup) - Kathleen Gomez, Vickie Barnett 
Finance Committee - Carl Inglesby, Deborah Cleeton, Mary Prendergast, Bryce Taylor 
Property committee - John Sengle, Carl Inglesby, Vickie Barnett, Justin Miller  
Personnel Committee - Justin Miller, Vickie Barnett, Kathleen Gomez 
Fundraising Committee - Rhonda Rumbaugh, Vickie Barnett,  
Planning committee - Rhonda Rumbaugh, Bryce Taylor 
 
Conflict of Interest Forms - Sticha stated she will email out the forms again on Friday and will, 
also, send out the membership agreements.  
 
Ratification of email vote to approve CD renewals - Reese reviewed the email vote. The vote 
was to cash out the matured CD at FNB and pay the First Non-Profit 10% commission invoice for 
their help with the ERC calculator, and then take the remaining balance from the FNB CD and 
add it to the maturing CD at Kish. The amount that would be added is $9250.11 and then 
rollover that CD for another Five months. Taylor made a motion to ratify the motion to 
approve the CD email. Seconded by Cleeton. Motion carried. 
 
Review of meeting dates/times - The April meeting will not be held so Board members will 
have the opportunity to attend the 40th Anniversary of the Young Authors and Illustrators 
competition.  
 
Trustee section of the website/corporate headshots - Sticha stated that her and Schwartz are 
working on adding information to the website regarding the Board, meeting minutes and the 
990. Schwartz suggested that Board member photos get added to the website. Sticha stated 
that a patron from Bellefonte has offered to take the photos of the board members. Discussion 
was held regarding the photos and if the board was in agreement of having them taken and 
board information to be placed on the website. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 109 of 144



3 
 

 
Old Business:  
 
Municipal Visits: No discussion. 
 
Committee Reports: 
Finance:  The Finance Committee met with FNB earlier in the month, and discussed the forecast 
for 2025 and 2024 year ending. They suggested meeting again in 6 months to review the 
accounts. Sticha stated that she is working on setting a meeting date with WeAreInvested to 
discuss the investments.  
 
Personnel: Nothing to report. 
 
Property:  
Museum – Sticha stated that the 2025-2026  HVAB grant application is open and will close on 
February 21st. The property committee will need to decide what they would like to do at the 
Museum. Sticha suggested that a grant be written for painting several rooms in the Museum. 
Discussion was held regarding vendors to contact for bids. Currently, we have received a grant 
to replace the carpet in the Museum and a company was in today to give three quotes. One for 
the entire building, one for the Museum rooms that are in dire need of replacement, one for 
the Museum rooms and the hallway carpet. Gomez suggested contacting Carpet One, Barnett 
suggested Complete Floor Covering in Lemont, Factory Carpet Outlet and America’s Carpet 
Outlet. Further discussion was held regarding the businesses and funding. 
 
Bellefonte branch – Sticha stated the furnace is still running without issues. Hazel’s is to give an 
estimate for the replacement of the system. Inglesby asked if Hazel’s would be giving an 
estimate to replace the system, and Sticha stated that follow-up needs to be done to get that 
bid. Barnett suggested contacting Redmond’s Complete Comfort to get a bid.  
 
Centre Hall – Sticha stated that her and Sengle had a meeting with KTH to review the plans for 
the expansion. Sticha discussed some points of the meeting and the changes that needed to be 
made. She will share with the Board in an email further details of the meeting. She will be 
sharing the changes with the Centre Hall staff to let them review and make sure the changes 
will work.  The next capital campaign meeting for the PPVLS is February 3rd. Sticha will be 
meeting with the Rural Development office of the Department of Agriculture regarding the 
grant and loan project. Inglesby asked if any of the pipes froze during the past cold spell and 
Sticha stated that they had not.  
 
Holt – Nothing to report.  
 
Bellefonte Little House - Sticha stated that the property committee will be meeting with Brian 
Chilton next week to discuss the plans for the steps and walkway. 
 
Fundraising/Development: Annual Appeal-  Reese reported that $28523.25 has been raised to 
date. Inglesby asked if it would be possible to state in the donation letter the amount that the 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 110 of 144



4 
 

donor made the prior year. Discussion was held as to what steps would be needed to gather 
that information and add it to the donation letter. 
 
Planning: No updates. 
 
Nomination: Discussion about 2025 officers and committee appointments - Sticha informed 
the board that the Centre Hall Borough will be appointing Rhonda Rumbaugh to the board at 
their reorganizational meeting January 27, 2025. Sticha will send out a list of the term dates for 
members. 
 
Holt Friends -. Sticha stated that the Friends are still having issues getting members. They had 
issues getting the passwords for their investments and needed to contact the investment 
company to see how they could access those accounts. 
 
Bellefonte Friends - Did not meet in January. Their meeting dates are the first Wednesday of 
each month. Sticha stated that there will be an article in the Gazette regarding the donation of 
the computer desk station. 
 
PPVLS-  A steak dinner is planned for March 29th and Sticha will be speaking regarding the 
expansion. Recently had a fundraiser with Moe’s. There have been new members added to the 
group, and stated they are looking to get a new website. Rumbaugh stated that they will be 
reaching out to Schwartz regarding Constant Contact. Sticha stated that we are looking at 
another media system, and will share the information with Rumbaugh.  
 
Comments for the Good of the Order and Adjournment:  
 
Cleeton motioned to go into Executive session at 7:36 pm. Seconded by Barnett. Left 
executive session at 7:46 pm. Barnett made a motion to close the Executive session at 7:46 
pm. Seconded by Cleeton. Motion carried. 
 
Barnett made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:47 pm. Seconded by Prendergast . 
Motion carried. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Michele Reese, Office  Manager 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 111 of 144



 

WORKPLACE SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING  

7:30 AM   

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 9TH, 2025 

AGENDA 

Members: 

Jason Ostroskie (Member, Streets) Chair Bill Witmer (Member, Police)  

Seth Klinefelter (Member, WWTP) V. Chair Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP- Mgmt) 

Craig Bloom (Member, Water) Matt Auman (Member, PW-Mgmt)  

Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS) Julie Brooks (Member, Mgmt)  

Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept)  Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep)         

Samuel Horner (Member, Refuse)  

 

Administrative:   Alyssa Doherty 

    

Guests: Ralph W Stewart, Barb Smith, April Ressler 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES –March 12th, 2025    1st                                   2nd 

 

OLD BUSINESS  

➢ Safety Concern Forms Review  

➢ Recent safety incidents & near misses review: None 

➢ 1st Quarter Facility Inspection- Train Station-Inspection Report 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

➢ Video- Workplace Stress (15 minutes) 

➢ Review Policy and Procedure Manual Chapters 6, 7 & 8 for suggested edits 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

➢ Please try to limit all comments to three minutes maximum.  

 

NEXT MEETING  

➢ The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 14th, 2025 @ 7:30 AM.  

 

ADJOURNMENT    1st                                           2nd                 @                         AM 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 112 of 144



BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 
WORKPLACE SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 12TH, 2025, 7:30 A.M. 
BELLEFONTE BOROUGH BUILDING COUNCIL ROOM 

 
Members Present:     
Matt Auman (Member, Mgmt) 
Craig Bloom (Member, Water)  
Sam Horner (Member, Refuse)  
Julie Brooks (Member, Mgmt) 
Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep) 
Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS)  
Bill Witmer (Member, Police) 
Jason Ostroskie (Member, Streets) 
Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept)-Zoom 
Seth Klinefelter (Member, WWTP) 
 
Members Absent:  
Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP-Mgmt) 
 
Administrative:   Alyssa Doherty 
 
Guests:  Barb Smith, Teeter Group-Zoom  
             
CALL TO ORDER:  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES –February 12th, 2025 
Mr. Horner moved to approve the meeting minutes. Mr. Klinefelter seconded.  Motion carried.  

OLD BUSINESS:   
Safety Concern Forms Review: None. 
 
Recent Safety incidents or near-miss reviews: There were two incidents within the Police 
Department. After discussing Root Cause, all policies and procedures were followed. These 
incidents were not preventable for a Police Officer.  
 
There was incident within the Refuse Department. A finger was pinches between a dumpster at 
Burger King. After the incident happened, Mr. Auman went a spoke with the manager of Burger 
King. The solution will be to replace the dumpster with 10 cans. The root cause is the tight space 
and employees moving the dumpster around to clean the area.  
 
1st Quarter Facility Inspection Report-Train Station: Will be available at the April 2025 
Meeting. Inspection is scheduled for March 13th at 2pm.  
 
NEW BUSINESS:    

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 113 of 144



Video: Bullying and other Disruptive Behaviors  (10 minutes): Informative video.  
 
Bellefonte Borough Safety & Policy & Procedure Manual Additions on Chapter 6, 7 & 8: 
Chapters 6, 7 & 8 will be reviewed at the April 2025 meeting.  

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER:  
None. 
 
 NEXT MEETING: The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, April 9th, 2025, @ 7:30 a.m.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Auman moved to adjourn. Ms. Brooks seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried.  The meeting adjourned at 7:51 am.   
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 114 of 144



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 

First Quarter 
Safety Committee Inspection 

 
 
Date: March 13, 2025 
 
 
Location: 2 pm Train Station 
 
 
Inspectors: Julie Brooks, Craig Herrold, Matt Auman, Jason Ostroskie, 
Craig Bloom  
 
 
 
Findings: Storage area in the basement needs to be clear for Borough 

access. AED pads need to be ordered, an exit sign should be 
installed and the storage cabinet in the restroom should be 
locked. 
 
 
 

Conclusion: These items will be taken care of by the Chamber, they 
lease the building. Julie Brooks to work with the Chamber and follow 
up. 
 
 
 
 
 
This report submitted by Julie Brooks  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 115 of 144



QUIZ 
 

"WORKPLACE STRESS" 
 
 
Employee Name:                                                      Training Date:          

 

1. True or False?... Stress can come in both positive and negative forms.  
        True          False 

 
 
2. True or False?... Long-term physical effects of "negative stress" can include migraines, high 

blood pressure, ulcers and even heart attacks.  
        True          False 

 
 
3. True or False?... "Deep breathing" is a relaxation technique that can help you to reduce stress. 

        True          False 
 
 
4. True or False?... If you are overwhelmed by workplace stress, it helps to push yourself to 

"buckle down" and do a better job. 
        True          False 

 
 
5. True or False?... The physical symptoms of stress are something you just have to live with, 

since stress is a natural phenomenon.  
        True          False 

 
 
6. True or False?... Studies show that being in good physical shape has nothing to do with stress 

levels. 
        True          False 

 
 
7. True or False?… While it is always good to have a balanced and nutritious diet, it really has no 

affect on our ability to deal with stress. 
        True          False 

 
 
8. True or False?... Stretching exercises are an effective way to relieve the physical signs of 

stress as well as stress itself.  
        True          False 

 
 
9. True or False?... If you fail to get the rest your body needs, your energy level will fall and 

increase the risk of developing stress.  
        True          False 
 

 
10. True or False?... Your attitude has a lot to do with how much you feel stressed.  

        True          False 
 
 
 
 
 
SMK-384 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 116 of 144



21 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER 6 

 

Office Safety 
 

A. GENERAL 

 
Office workers are individuals who are primarily engaged in performing clerical, 

administrative, or professional tasks indoors. Normally, office workers give very little thought to 

safety because they do not believe that serious accidents occur in an office, and office injuries 

often seem inconsequential because they lack the dramatic impact of those accidents that 

happen in other areas. As a result, the belief that office accidents do not amount to much 

results in complacency, and this complacency on the part of employees is the prime cause of 

office accidents. 

 
B. RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
At the Bellefonte Borough, supervisors are just as responsible for training their workers in 

safety procedures as they are in training them in efficiency and job duties. To accomplish this 

responsibility, supervisors must understand the nature of office hazards and unsafe procedures. 

This will allow them to inform workers of the hazards in the office environment and the 

procedures needed to prevent these accidents. 

 
C. COMMON OFFICE HAZARDS 

 
1. Falls  - This category accounts for the most severe injuries and the majority of 

lost time. Falls result from slippery or uneven floors, tripping, standing on 

objects and chairs tipping. 

 
2. Strain/Over Exertion  - Trying to move heavy objects, carrying too heavy a load, 

or sudden and/or awkward movements create this hazard. 

 
3. Striking Against Objects - This hazard includes bumping into doors, desks, file 

cabinets, open drawers, and other people. 

 
4. Struck by An Object - Being struck by a falling office machine, a file cabinet 

tipping or material falling off of shelves are examples of this category. 

 
5. Caught In Between Objects - This category includes employees who have parts 

of their bodies caught in drawers, doors, desks, file cabinets, operating office 

machines, or fans. It also includes having a finger under the knife edge of a paper 

cutter. 
 

6. Miscellaneous - This category includes hazards such as a foreign object in the 

eye, burns from hot liquids such as coffee or tea, and electrical shock

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 117 of 144



 

25 | P a g e  
 

 
D. CONTROL OF HAZARDS 

 
It is obvious from the above listing that office workers are exposed to many real hazards. To 

control accidents, steps must be taken to eliminate hazards or reduce the exposure to them. 

These steps can be accomplished by the use of a good office layout, the purchasing of safe office 

equipment, and the establishment of safe office practices. The following is a list of procedures to 

be used by Borough office workers to help prevent office accidents: 

 

1. Good housekeeping in the office is a must. Desks and cabinets must be kept clean 

 and orderly. 

 
 2. Work areas should be kept free of waste and loose materials. This is 

 especially true in the vicinity of ladders, ramps, stairs, and passageways. 

 
 3. The standard four-drawer filing cabinet can cause injury if it upsets as a 

 result of opening a heavily loaded top drawer. Open only one drawer at a time. 

 
4. Use handles when closing desk drawers, file cabinets, and doors. 

 
 5. All chairs should be used sensibly. Don’t tilt them or slump back. The added 

 strain on the chairs could cause them to break or slip, resulting in injury to the 

 occupant. Dispose of broken chairs. 

 
 6. If you must reach high or do any climbing, use a safe ladder and not make-

 shift boxes, cabinets, etc. Do not use a chair for climbing. 

 
7. Do not attempt any electrical repairs. 

 
 8. Cords on electrically operated machines and telephones create a tripping 

 hazard when left on the floor or in walkways. Arrange the work area to avoid this 

 hazard. 

 

9. Do not remove the ground prong of a three-prong plug. Electrical equipment with a 

 three-prong plug requires a three-hole receptacle. If an adaptor must be used to 

 accommodate a two-prong receptacle, have a qualified employee ensure that the 

 adapter is properly grounded. 

 
10.  Do your reading at your desk, not while walking. 

 

11.  When using stairways, take your time and use the handrails. 

 
12.  Do not stand and talk in front of a closed door that may be suddenly opened. 

 

 13.  Avoid spilling or splashing liquids on the floor. This could cause someone to slip 

or fall.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 118 of 144



 

26 | P a g e  
 

14. Slips of paper, a pencil, or even a paper clip on the floor can cause a slip or fall. 

Remember good housekeeping. 

 
15. Daydreaming is a dangerous habit. Keep your mind on the job. 

 
16. Sharpened pencils should be placed point down, in pencil holders. Other sharp 

objects, such as scissors and letter openers, should be covered or placed to prevent 

puncture wounds. 

 
17. Carry pencils, fountain pens, scissors, etc., in such a way that the sharp end cannot 

cause puncture wounds to you or others. 

 
18. Report all defective equipment to your department head or supervisor. 

 
19. REMEMBER, report all on-the-job injuries immediately. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 119 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER 7 

 

Occupational Safety 
 

A. PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT 

 
At the Bellefonte Borough, safety is an important factor in the acquiring of new equipment. 

Emphasis is placed on the inherent safety considerations in the design, quality, and durability of 

each item. When making safety equipment purchases, the Borough tries to balance employee 

protection with quality, comfort, and worker acceptance. All equipment purchased for the safety 

of employees should conform to specifications and standards set by Federal and State 

Occupational Safety and Health Acts. 

 
B. PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 

 
The Departments should review their operations to identify jobs and duties that present 

hazards. Department Team Leaders as well as the Superintendent should develop procedures to 

ensure adequate precautions are taken and that appropriate safety equipment is available and 

used during these operations. In addition, applicable warning signs should be placed in areas 

that present hazards. When the use of personal protective equipment has been specified for 

hazardous work, its use will be mandatory as a condition of employment, and employees of the 

Borough will be accountable for its use and condition. The following equipment list will be 

worn when hazards as described exist: 

 
1. Hard Hats  - To protect the head against falling objects, head bumping 

situations, or electrical conductors. Will be replaced every 2 years. 

 
2. Goggles, Face Shields, or Safety Glasses  - To guard against airborne debris, 

dust, flying particles, chips, chemicals, heat, or injurious rays. 

 
3. Ear Plugs or Ear Muffs - To guard against exposure to noise at high levels. 

 
4. Respirators, Gas Masks, and Breathing Apparatus - To protect employees 

against toxic conditions. Cartridge expiration dates should be checked regularly. 

 
5. Safety Shoes  - To protect feet from dropped articles, vehicle wheels, 

machines, and nail punctures. 

 
6. Reflective Clothing - Such as vests, jackets, etc., which help to ensure easy 

visibility of employees. 
 

Special Note: The Supervisors are responsible for the replacement of all personal 

protective equipment (PPE). 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 120 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

 
C. PROPER DRESS FOR WORK 

 
Each employee should wear clothing suitable for the job they are performing. Suitable clothing 

will help to minimize the danger from moving machinery, hot or injurious substances, 

sunburns, bumps and abrasions, wounds, and heat and cold. 

 
Employees should also trim or confine hair which may constitute a hazard to the employee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 121 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER 8 

 

Vehicle Safety 
 

A. GENERAL 

 
Basic to any vehicle accident prevention program is the understanding by management, team 

leaders, and operators that there are preventable and non-preventable accidents. These two 

terms are a measure of the defensive driving skills exercised by the driver involved in a given 

accident. If a driver did everything within reason to avoid the accident, it should be classified as 

non-preventable. If a driver fails to do so, then the accident is preventable. Defensive driving 

then is an attitude. Namely, that the driver can prevent most accidents by taking the initiative. 

This initiative must be supplemented by alertness, foresight, knowledge, judgment, and skill. 

 
This concept makes possible a very important factor of the program; it establishes a 

workable and enforceable standard of safe driving performance. The standard of safe driving 

performance then is to drive without a preventable accident. In turn, this is the area where the 

Borough will concentrate its efforts to minimize preventable vehicle accidents and alleviate the 

damage and personal injuries involved. 

 
B. RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The Superintendents of the Bellefonte Borough are responsible for implementing the 

provisions of this program positively and effectively. New employee orientation will include a 

discussion on safe driving habits. 

 
The Borough Manager and the Assistant Borough Manager should monitor this program to 

measure its effectiveness and ensure that employees understand the importance of abiding by 

the program. 

 
C. PROGRAM ELEMENTS 

General: 

1. All employees should wear seat belts if installed while operating or riding in a vehicle 

(or other equipment) while on the job. Pennsylvania law requires seat belts be used and 

injuries sustained because of failure to comply may lead to disciplinary action. 

 
2. No employee should operate any vehicle nor any equipment of any kind while under the 

influence of alcohol or drugs that may impair judgment or alertness, or while in any other 

condition that would render the operation of such vehicle or equipment unsafe. 

 
3. All employees who operate Borough vehicles must have a valid Pennsylvania operator 

license for the particular type of vehicle involved. Employees have a responsibility to 

notify management if their driver's license becomes invalid for any reason. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 122 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

4. Every vehicle operator should abide by Pennsylvania traffic laws. 

 
5. Vehicles found to be unsafe should not be driven until repaired. 

 
6. In the event an employee receives a summons or complaint regarding the operation of a 

motor vehicle or other motorized equipment in the course of his/her employment, it is his/her 

duty to report the issuance to the management of the Borough as soon as possible. 

Management should conduct a subsequent investigation into the circumstances of the 

summons or complaint and take such action as deemed necessary. 

 
7. Care should be taken to ensure that only the most qualified personnel are permitted to 

operate Borough-owned vehicles. People differ in their ability to act and drive safely. Of all 

occupations, few involve a greater need for safety than that of the vehicle operator. A properly 

selected, trained, and motivated driver can usually avoid accidents. 
 

Driver Selection: 

 
1. Department heads and supervisors should select persons with the best potential for driving 

safely. The most critical indicator of this ability is a person’s previous driving experience. 

It has been fairly well established that an individual who has frequent motor vehicle 

accidents and citations in the past will continue to have frequent problems in the future. 

Therefore, an attempt should be made to ascertain the number of vehicle accidents a new 

employee has had and how many times he or she has been cited for traffic violations. 

 
2. Upon employment, all employees must furnish the Borough with their driver’s license 

number, class, expiration date, and any restrictions noted on their license. Employees 

should further declare the status of their license and agree to notify management if their 

license is ever suspended revoked, expired, or modified in any way. 

 
3. New employees should not be allowed to drive any Borough vehicle until the status of 

their driver’s license has been verified. As stated previously, a valid PA driver's license is 

required for employment at the Borough and a D.M.V. report will verify this requirement. 

 

4. Other factors to consider in the selection process are attitude, motivation, longevity, 

present job performance, and involvement in repeated on-the-job injuries. 
 

Training: 

 
1. Every operator should be adequately trained to reduce the involvement in a preventable 

accident due to a lack of knowledge regarding the equipment being operated. Although training 

costs money, time, and effort, the following benefits can be derived: 

 
a. Reduced number of accidents.  

b. Reduced maintenance costs. 

c. Reduced supervisory burden.  

d. Improved public relations. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 123 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

2. Because of the variety of vehicles used by the various Borough departments, each work 

group should develop a program to suit their needs. The only measure in determining what 

is necessary is that initial training should be adequate to bring the knowledge and skill of a 

new operator up to that necessary to perform the job safely and properly. These programs 

should include a pre-drive inspection of the vehicle, basic driving maneuvers, 

demonstration of stopping distance, driving in traffic, procedures to follow in the event of an 

accident, and operation of the vehicle under adverse road conditions. 
 

Monitoring Performance: 

 
1. Accidents will be reviewed by management of the Borough to ascertain whether they were 

preventable or non-preventable accidents. The Borough Manager and the Assistant Borough 

Manager will determine if an employee will be allowed to continue to operate Borough 

vehicles’ following a vehicle accident. 

 
2. Department heads and supervisors should observe vehicle operators periodically for 

consistency in driving habits and attitudes. Employees who exhibit non-consistent or erratic 

driving habits and attitudes may need additional training. 

 
Vehicle Condition: 

 
1. Borough drivers are responsible for determining the condition of an assigned vehicle 

before operation. This should include general appearance and mechanical condition in 

addition to safety devices. Before operation, each driver should check his/her vehicle for the 

following items, parts, and accessories to determine that they are in satisfactory condition or 

good working order:  

 

a. Service brakes and parking brakes. 

 
b. Lights (front, rear, brake) and turn signal lamps. c.

 Horn and windshield wipers. 

d. Tire pressure and tread. 

e. Steering mechanisms. 

f. Rear view and side mirrors. 

 
2. If an employee determines the vehicle to be unsafe, he/she should report it to 

management immediately. 

 
3. Each department should develop pre-operation inspection checklists for special-

purpose vehicles. 

 
4. Department heads and supervisors should periodically check for vehicle abuse during 

their observation of drivers. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 124 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

 

D. USES OF BOROUGH-OWNED VEHICLES 

 
Bellefonte Borough vehicles are to be used only for transacting matters relating to official 

Borough business. They will not be used by employees for personal reasons. 

 
1. Transporting Persons in Borough-Owned Vehicles - A driver will not transport 

persons other than on-duty Borough employees in a Borough-owned vehicle unless 

the persons are being transported in connection with official Borough business, law 

enforcement matters, or as authorized by the Borough Manager or Assistant Borough 

Manager. 

 
2. Transporting Equipment or Property - When items of equipment, property, 

supplies, etc., are being transported, the driver will ensure that all items are properly 

secured or tied in place to prevent them from shifting or falling from the vehicle. 

 
3. Driving by Unauthorized Persons  - Except in case of an emergency, a driver will 

not allow a vehicle that he has been assigned to be driven by any person not authorized to 

drive a Borough-owned vehicle. 

 
4. Riding on Fenders, Hoods, or Running Boards - No person will be allowed to ride 

on running boards, fenders, hoods, tailgates, or rear racks of vehicles. 
 

5. Obstruction of Driver’s View - No driver will drive any vehicle when it is so 

loaded that it obstructs his/her view ahead, to the right or left side, or interferes with 

his/her control over the driving mechanism of the vehicle. No more than three (3) 

people will ride in the front seat of a vehicle at one time. 
 

6. Opening and Closing Vehicle Doors - No person will open the door of a vehicle on 

the side available to moving traffic unless and until it is reasonably safe to do so, nor will 

any person leave a door open on the side of a vehicle available to moving traffic for a 

period of time longer than necessary to load or unload passengers. 

 
7. Unattended Vehicles - No person driving or in charge of any motor vehicle will 

permit it to be unattended without first stopping the motor, locking the ignition, 

removing the key, effectively setting the brake, and when standing upon any grade, 

turning the front wheels to the curb or side of the roadway. 
 

8. Striking Unattended Vehicles - If a moving vehicle strikes a vehicle standing or 

unattended on other property, the driver will immediately stop and endeavor to 

locate the owner. If he is unable to do so, he/she will place securely and conspicuously 

his name and address on the damaged property. A police report will be made by the 

approved police department which has jurisdiction. 

 
9. Flags on Projected Loads - Any vehicle having a load that extends more than two (2) 

feet beyond the rear will have the end of the load marked with a red flag which will be 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 125 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

at least a 12-inch square. 

 

10. Coupling Devices - A driver whose vehicle is towing a trailer, dolly, or other 

equipment will ensure that the trailer hitch is securely latched and that safety chains are 

properly attached. 

 
11. Alcoholic Beverages or Narcotic Drugs - No person will be permitted to drive a 

Borough-owned vehicle while under the influence of any alcoholic beverage or narcotic 

drug. 

 
12. Obstructing Traffic for Work Requirements - Whenever work requirements 

make it necessary for a Borough-owned vehicle to block or obstruct traffic, the driver 

will place warning signs or traffic cones to warn oncoming motorists of the obstruction. 

Warning signs will be placed far enough from the standing vehicle to give oncoming 

motorists adequate time in which to stop safely. Distance should be determined by: (1) 

street and weather conditions; (2) speed limits in the area; and (3) whether the vehicle is 

standing on a straight or curved roadway. Vehicles so equipped will use revolving lights 

or blinkers as additional warning devices. 

 

13. Seat Belts - All occupants of Borough-owned vehicles are required to wear a seat 

belt when the vehicle is in motion. This is Pennsylvania state law. 

 
E. VEHICLE ACCIDENTS 

 

1. Definition of Vehicle Accidents - A vehicle accident is defined as an occurrence in 

which a vehicle owned by the Bellefonte Borough comes into contact with another 

vehicle, a person, an object, or an animal which results in death, personal injury, or 

property damage, regardless of who was injured, what property was damaged and to 

what extent, where it occurred or who was responsible. 

 
2. Procedures When Accidents Occur  - When a Borough-owned vehicle is 

involved in an accident, the following procedures will be followed: 

 
A. Whenever the operator of a Borough-owned vehicle is involved in a 

vehicular accident on a public or private street, the police department of 

jurisdiction will be immediately notified and a police officer will be 

summoned to the accident scene to investigate and complete an accident 

report. All accidents that occur on Borough property will be immediately 

reported to the Borough Manager or Assistant Borough Manager. 

 
o If the driver is unable to complete the accident report because of 

disability, Borough management will complete or designate someone to 

complete the accident report for him/her. 

 
o When involved in an accident, the Borough driver should follow 

these procedures: 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 126 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

 

a. Stop the vehicle at once. 

 
b. Render all possible aid to the injured at once and send for an 

ambulance. 

 
c. Notify the Borough and the police. 

 
d. Protect the public by warning oncoming motorists to prevent 

additional accidents. 

 
B. Employees will cooperate fully with officials investigating the accident. 

 
C. Incidents involving vandalism to Borough-owned vehicles will be reported to 

the police department for investigation. 
 

D. All operators of Borough-owned vehicles will be held responsible for the safe 

operation and proper reporting of all accidents and known damage to vehicles 

to which they are assigned. 

 
E. Incidents involving theft of or from Borough-owned vehicles will be reported 

to the police department for investigation. 

 
F. Operators of Borough-owned vehicles involved in an accident will make no 

statement as to responsibility and will not advise other parties involved that the 

Borough will pay for the damage resulting from said accident. 

 
1.  Employees will fully cooperate with investigating officials. 

 
2.  Employees will complete all forms, statements, or diagrams 

requested by investigating officials. 
 

Note:  Federal regulations require that employees with a Commercial Drivers License 

(CDL) must submit to drug and alcohol testing after an accident under the following 

circumstances: 

 
any time a fatality occurs as a result of the accident; 

or 

any time an employee receives a citation for a moving violation as a result of an 

accident and the accident involves an injury to anyone which requires immediate 

medical treatment away from the scene; 

or 

anytime an employee receives a citation for a moving violation as a result of the accident and the 

accident involves disabling damage to any of the vehicles. Disabling damage means one or more 

vehicles had to be towed away or cannot be driven from the scene. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 127 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

 

Employees with a CDL license must submit to a breath or saliva alcohol test as soon as 

possible following the time of the accident. He/she must not consume any alcohol from the time 

of the accident until he/she is tested, or until eight hours have elapsed, whichever is sooner. 

 
Employees with a CDL license must provide a urine specimen for drug testing as soon as 

possible following the time of the accident. The specimen must be collected within 32 hours. 

 
F. PREVENTABLE ACCIDENT GUIDES 

 
The definition of a preventable accident is as follows: “Any vehicle unless properly parked, 

involved in an accident which results in personal injury or property damage in which the driver 

failed to do everything he/she could have done to prevent or avoid the accident.” 

 
An accident will be considered “preventable” when it is determined that the accident could 

reasonably have been prevented by the driver. An accident will not be considered “non-

preventable” merely because all laws, ordinances, orders, or rules and regulations were obeyed 

or the driver had the right-of-way at the time if there are other circumstances involved. 
 

1. Preventable Accidents 

 
A. Backing Accidents - Poor backing is the number one cause of vehicle 

accidents. The responsibility for backing safely is entirely the drivers. Backing 

is dangerous only if the driver neglects to make sure the way is clear during the 

entire movement. Where feasible, Borough vehicles should be backed into 

parking spaces so they can be driven out front end first. Backing to park results in 

fewer accidents since the driver has a chance to survey the area before backing in. 

 
B. Intersection Accidents - Stop lights, stop signs, or right-of-ways are no 

protection against collision with violators, funeral processions, fire, police, or 

ambulance vehicles. 

 
C. Pedestrian Accidents - Whether or not pedestrians have the right-of-way or 

are jaywalking, pedestrian accidents should not be considered unavoidable 

unless the investigation fails to uncover anything that the driver could have done 

to prevent the accident. 

 
D. Rear-End Collisions - Such collisions with the rear of the vehicle ahead or 

when the vehicle to the rear strikes your vehicle when caused by sudden stops at 

intersections, grade crossings, passenger stops, when preparing to turn or park, or 

when improperly parked or allowed to roll back before starting, are seldom 

excusable. Most rear-end collisions can be avoided by foresight in controlling 

speed and allowing sufficient following distance. Watch the traffic situation 

ahead of the vehicle in front of you so that you can anticipate the need to stop. 

Stop gradually - not suddenly! 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 128 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

E. Traffic Lane Encroachment Accidents - Such accidents result from 

passing, weaving, or entering a line of moving traffic. These types of accidents 

are caused by trespassing on the right of others to move in a straight line without 

interference. 
 

F. Accidents Resulting from Mechanical Condition - Any accident blamed on 

mechanical failure that reasonable and prudent attention could have foreseen but 

was not reported for repair, including any accident blamed on mechanical failure 

as the result of a driver operating his/her vehicle over its mechanical limits or from 

mechanical failure that resulted from a driver’s rough or abusive handling. 

 
G. Accidents with Fixed Rail Vehicles - Trains and street cars always have the 

right-of-way because they run on fixed tracks, cannot dodge or maneuver, and need 

greater braking distance than rubber tire vehicles. 

 
H. Collisions with Stationary Objects, Non-Collision Accidents, Unattended 

Vehicle Accidents, and Miscellaneous Accidents - Accidents involving 

scraping or striking curbs, buildings, signs, trees, posts, bridges, parked vehicles, 

and overhead obstructions and accidents resulting from overturning, running 

off the roadway, or colliding with stationary objects sometimes are caused by 

taking emergency action to avoid another accident. However, investigation 

usually reveals that the driver was not driving defensively before that instant. If 

he/she had, he/she would not have placed himself/herself in a position where 

emergency action became necessary. Expert drivers do not depend on their skill to 

get them out of tight spots; they depend on their judgment to avoid tight spots. 

 
I. Accidents Blamed on Adverse Weather Conditions - Rain, fog, snow, sleet, 

or icy pavements do not cause accidents but add more hazards to driving and 

make the normal hazards worse. Accidents blamed on skidding or bad weather 

conditions are classified as preventable because they can be prevented by reducing 

speed, installing skid chains, using sand, and most importantly, stopping entirely 

if the going gets too hazardous to continue safely. 

 
J. Parking Accidents - Unconventional parking locations, including double 

parking, failure to put out warning devices, etc., generally constitute evidence for 

judging an accident preventable. Roll-away accidents from parked positions 

normally should be classified as preventable. This includes unauthorized entry 

into an unlocked or unattended vehicle, and failure to properly block wheels or turn 

wheels toward the curb to prevent vehicle movement. 

 
2. The following will constitute prima facie (at first sight) evidence that the accident in 

question was preventable: 

 
A. Violation of a law or ordinance by a Borough driver. 

 

B. Borough vehicle strikes another vehicle in the rear end. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 129 of 144



 

27 | P a g e  
 

 
C. Borough vehicle strikes a fixed object. 

 
D. Backing Borough vehicle strikes vehicle or object. 

 
E. High-speed operation resulting in loss of vehicle control regardless of weather 

conditions. 

 
3. Non-Preventable Accidents 

 
An accident will be considered “non-preventable” when it is determined that the 

accident could not have reasonably been prevented or avoided by the driver of a 

Borough vehicle. 

 
Following the presentation of evidence and discussion of facts and circumstances 

surrounding the accident, the determination of preventability or non-preventability 

will be decided by the Borough Manager or the Assistant Borough Manager. If the 

accident is determined to have been preventable, the decision and degree of 

disciplinary action taken will also rest with the Borough Manager or the Assistant 

Borough Manager. 

 
If an employee of the Borough disagrees with the decision of the Borough Manager 

or the Assistant Borough Manager concerning a vehicle accident, he/she may appeal 

the ruling by following the guidelines outlined in the Bellefonte Borough/AFSCME 

“Grievance Procedure”, which is part of the Labor Management Contract 

Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 130 of 144



ORDINANCE NO. 04212025-01 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE AMENDING THE 
CODIFIED BOOK OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 108: POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
 
 Be it enacted and ordained by the Council of the Borough of Bellefonte, and it is hereby 
enacted and ordained by the authority of the same. 
 
SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 
 
Amend Article IV to read as follows: 
 
§ 108-4. Defined. 

A line officer is defined as any person holding the office of Chief, Captain or Lieutenant in the 
Police Department of the Borough. 
 
 ENACTED AND ORDAINED into an Ordinance this 21st day of April 2025, by the Council 
of the Borough of Bellefonte in lawful session assembled. 
 
 
ATTEST:      BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE: 
 
 
_______________________________  ____________________________ 
Donald Holderman      Barbara Dann 
Interim Borough Manager/Secretary   President of Council 
 
 
AND NOW, to wit, this 21st day of April 2025, the within and above Ordinance is approved. 
         
                                                                         
               __________________________  
               Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor 
        
 
 
  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 131 of 144



Memo 
To: Council 

From: Alyssa Doherty 

Date: 4/17/2025 

Re: Amendment to Ordinance Chapter 482: Solid Waste  

Current Ordinance Chapter 482: Solid Waste 

§ 482-31. Related services. 

A. Compostable materials. Compostable materials shall be separated from other refuse and 

placed close to the curb on Wednesdays from April 1 through October 31. All 

compostable materials shall be set aside from other refuse presently collected by the 

Borough. No compostable materials shall be placed in plastic bags. Brush shall be tied in 

bundles. Bundles shall be no longer than six feet and manageable by one person. The use 

of plastic bags as storage containers for compostable materials to be picked up by the 

Borough shall be considered a violation of this section. 

B. Grass clippings. This service is optional and shall be for the collection of grass clippings 

generated by the lot receiving the service only. This service shall be available beginning 

April 1 and ending October 31. The Borough shall be the provider of a grass clippings 

container at the resident's expense. Grass clippings shall be picked up on Wednesdays. 

Once a grass container is purchased, there will be no charge for pickup of grass clippings. 

 

As stated in Ordinance Chapter 482: Solid Waste Section 31 Related Services, I am requesting 

that Council to approve the Ordinance change to read as follows: 

B. Grass clippings. This service is optional and shall be for the collection of grass clippings 

generated by the lot receiving the service only. The Borough shall be the provider of a 

grass clippings container at the resident's expense. Grass clippings shall be picked up on 

Wednesdays. Once a grass container is purchased, there will be an annual charge for the 

pickup of grass clippings. The fee is established by Borough Council in the Borough's Fee 

Schedule.  
 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 132 of 144



ORDINANCE NO. 04212025-02 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE AMENDING THE 
CODIFIED BOOK OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 482: SOLID WASTE. 
 
 Be it enacted and ordained by the Council of the Borough of Bellefonte, and it is hereby 
enacted and ordained by the authority of the same. 
 
SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 
 
Amend Article II to read as follows: 
 
§ 482-31. Related Services. 

Grass clippings. This service is optional and shall be for the collection of grass clippings 
generated by the lot receiving the service only. The Borough shall be the provider of a grass 
clippings container at the resident's expense. Grass clippings shall be picked up on 
Wednesdays. Once a grass container is purchased, there will be an annual charge for the 
pickup of grass clippings. The fee is established by Borough Council in the Borough's Fee 
Schedule.  
 
 ENACTED AND ORDAINED into an Ordinance this 21st day of April 2025, by the Council 
of the Borough of Bellefonte in lawful session assembled. 
 
 
ATTEST:      BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE: 
 
 
_______________________________  ____________________________ 
Donald Holderman      Barbara Dann 
Interim Borough Manager/Secretary   President of Council 
 
 
AND NOW, to wit, this 21st day of April 2025, the within and above Ordinance is approved. 
         
                                                                         
               __________________________  
               Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor 
        
 
 
  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 133 of 144



 

 

 

 

 

Leadership Recruitment Services 

 

 

For: 

Leadership Recruitment Services for Bellefonte Borough 
 

Submitted to: 

Bellefonte Borough 
Attn:  Donald L. Holderman 
Assistant Borough Manager 
301 N. Spring Street Suite 200 
Bellefonte, PA 16823 

 

Date: 

4/14/2025 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 134 of 144



 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 135 of 144



 

 

ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT FOR RECRUITMENT SERVICES 

This ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this 14th  date 
of April, 2025 (the “Effective Date”), between KEYSTONE MUNICIPAL SOLUTIONS LLC (“KMS”) and 
Bellefonte Borough of Centre County (the “Municipality”) for recruitment services. 

This Agreement sets forth the scope and terms of our engagement as well as our expectations 
regarding billing, payment, cooperation, communication, and post-engagement obligations during and after 
the engagement. These terms will also apply to additional services that we may agree to provide beyond 
those described in this Agreement. 

Our Team 
 

KMS was founded in 2020, made up of a team of professionals with deep and broad municipal 

experience. The KMS team has decades of experience leading townships, boroughs, cities, authorities, 

and counties in handling the varied and complex matters that public entities face. With partners in all areas 

of the Commonwealth, and with diverse experiences, our deep bench allows our team to help with a range 

of issues. KMS has expertise assessing current personnel needs, helping to fill a vacancy, and even 

running day-to-day municipal operations on an interim basis. We can also help manage special projects 

that may be beyond the capacity or bandwidth of your staff, while also helping to train your current 

management team. Our team members have decades of experience helping municipalities manage 

staffing challenges and successfully recruit qualified candidates. 

Recruitment and Selection Services 

A summary of the services to be provided in this engagement is set forth in Appendix A, Scope of 
Services. Lucas Martsolf will be the project manager for this engagement. 

We will begin the recruitment process by collaborating with the Municipality to review the position’s 
existing job description and/or develop an updated job description. As part of that process, we will also 
review the respective ordinance governing the position of Borough Manager, for which recruitment 
services are being provided. Next, our team will implement a targeted outreach strategy. The 
announcement will be shared on our website and on various other web-based job boards. Importantly, we 
will utilize our contacts at various municipal organizations to advertise the job posting and engage our vast 
network of municipal officials to announce the vacancy. Accessing our strong, Commonwealth-wide 
network of municipal officials and partners through “word of mouth” advertising is critical to a successful 
recruitment effort. In addition, we will also conduct appropriate job board and social media searches to 
identify candidates. 

 
The search will seek to engage local candidates. Thus, the job announcement will be posted on 

the Municipality’s website. Allowing for local participation is a critical part of the outreach strategy; however, 
the reach of the recruitment effort will be broad in order to identify a quality pool of candidates. 

 
Next, KMS will collect and analyze the resumes and letters of interests received. Our team will be 

responsible for communicating with candidates during this stage of the recruitment process. In addition, 
our team will maintain a recruiting tracking sheet and provide regular status updates. A list of the most 
qualified and/or well qualified candidates will then be screened via a first round of telephone interviews by 
our team. We will also conduct a general online and social media search to screen candidates for potential 
issues. Based on the telephone interviews and general screening, we will create a short list of candidates 
for the Municipality to interview. KMS will assist with scheduling the next round of interviews and will 
participate in the interview process with the Municipality, if desired. We will collaborate with the Municipality 
to generate interview questions for use by the Municipality’s governing Board. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 136 of 144



4856-8455-9047, v. 1 

 
Background Investigation Services 
 

Once a candidate is selected, KMS will assist the Municipality in conducting an appropriate 
background check. Service includes, but is not limited to criminal records checks, drivers check, review of 
credit check data, and review of court records at the magisterial district court, common pleas court, federal 
court, and federal bankruptcy court levels. Interviews with listed references (and if requested by the 
Municipality the development of other references), interviews with previous employers, review of applicable 
records and documents (military records, education verification, etc.) review of social media sources for 
adverse information, and review of open-source materials. 
 

This will be done in compliance with the provisions of the FCRA with regard to background 
investigations for employment and we will consult with the Municipality’s labor and employment counsel 
if/as needed to ensure adherence to applicable law. 
 

The candidate will be required to provide waivers of liability and consent forms provided by KMS 
prior to commencement of services. The Municipality will be required to provide proof that a conditional 
offer of employment was made to applicant prior to the commencement of services. 
 

KMS may, at its sole discretion, utilize the services of trusted business associates to carry out all 
or part of this assignment. 
 

KMS always acts diligently in carrying out assignments in a timely manner. However, there are 
factors beyond our control which determine the length of time it takes to properly complete such an 
assignment. This includes reliance on government agencies, prior employers, listed references, and others 
for timely response to inquiries made and requests for records, documents, or interviews. In addition, as 
information is developed during the investigation it may require further, in-depth or detailed follow up which 
can extend the length of the process. 

 
The Municipality agrees to provide access to the Municipality’s Solicitor and/or Labor/Employment 

Attorney or other competent counsel as deemed necessary by KMS for legal advice regarding the services 
provided for the duration of the matter.  
 

The Municipality agrees that all direction and instructions provided to KMS and/or its trusted 
business associates will be legal, lawful, and ethical. Nothing derived from the services KMS and/or its 
trusted business associates will be used for any purpose which would constitute harassment, stalking, 
identify theft, access device fraud, invasion of privacy, or any other criminal activity. The Municipality 
understands that KMS makes no promise explicit or implied as to the outcome of any matter for which 
services are provided and makes no recommendation on the suitability of the candidate for employment.  
Further, the Municipality agrees to indemnify and hold harmless KMS, its owners, agents, and assigns, as 
well as those of its trusted business partners, from any and all liability which may result from the provision 
of the services agreed to.  

 
KMS agrees to hold in confidence any and all information and materials provided, obtained, or 

gathered as the result of this portion of the engagement and will not release it to anyone except the 
Municipality or those to whom the Municipality otherwise direct, unless compelled to do so by legal process 
or force of law. 
 
Additional Services 
 

KMS can also assist with negotiating terms and conditions for employment for the selected 
candidate. We can also assist the Municipality’s Solicitor in the preparation of appropriate employment 
documents, such as an employment agreement. 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 137 of 144



4856-8455-9047, v. 1 

Please note that while we believe that we will quickly be able to identify qualified and well-qualified 
candidates, we cannot guarantee that the Municipality will be in a position to appoint a Borough Manager 
on any particular timeline because there are too many variables beyond our control. 

 
Compensation 

Our fee for the engagement is $12,000. The fee includes the costs of advertising the position and 
also includes background investigation services. Our fee includes all out-of-pocket expenses, unless 
extraordinary expenses occur. Any extraordinary expenses will be pre-approved by the Municipality before 
incurred. Our engagement requires payment of 50% of the total fee at the start of the engagement, and 
the remaining 50% of the fee will be due and payable following the selection of a candidate or 90 days 
following commencement of recruitment efforts, whichever occurs first. For purposes of this Agreement, a 
recruitment effort shall be deemed to have commenced on the date in which advertisement for the position 
is first published. Irrespective of the above reference to 90 days, the Municipality will not be charged any 
additional fees for the agreed upon scope if the individual recruitment efforts extend beyond 90 days 
following commencement, assuming that no undue delay is caused by the actions of the Municipality. The 
Municipality agrees to pay our statements for services and expenses within 30 days of receipt. If our 
statements are not paid when due, you agree that we may immediately terminate this Agreement. 

Miscellaneous 

The Municipality and KMS shall, at all times, be independent parties. Neither party is an employee, 
joint venturer, franchisee, agent, or partner of the other. Additionally, neither party is authorized to assume 
or create any obligations or liabilities, express or implied, on behalf of or in the name of the other. Neither 
KMS nor any of its employees shall be entitled to participate in any plans, arrangements or distributions 
made or administered by the Municipality pertaining to or in connection with any employee benefits, 
including without limitation, health, dental, life or disability insurance, pension, 401(k), vacation, workers’ 
compensation, unemployment compensation, or any other benefits that are afforded by the Municipality to 
the Municipality’s employees. 

The Municipality acknowledges that KMS, and its independent contractors and employees, may 
perform work or services for a fee for entities other than the Municipality during this engagement. 

This Agreement can be terminated by either party with 5 days written notice. Upon termination of 
this Agreement, KMS shall have no further obligation under this Agreement. The Municipality’s obligation 
will be to pay KMS any amount due for services rendered prior to the termination date (pro-rated) and to 
comply with the post-engagement obligations listed below. In the event of a termination, KMS shall provide 
the Municipality with a written summary of the status of any open items that KMS was working on, including 
an action plan for completion. 

The Municipality recognizes the significant time and effort that KMS has invested in developing its 
services and its professional team. Accordingly, the Municipality shall not, directly or indirectly, engage, 
hire, employ, or permit any KMS employee or independent contractor to render services for, be employed 
by, represent or have any other affiliation with the Municipality for a period of three (3) years from the date 
of this Agreement without the written consent of KMS. Outside of this Agreement or any other formal 
engagement with KMS, no KMS employee or independent contractor shall directly or indirectly provide 
services to the Municipality for a period of three (3) years without the written consent of KMS. In the event 
that the Municipality engages, employs, receives services from or otherwise hires any KMS employee or 
independent contractor directly or indirectly, the Municipality shall pay to KMS an amount equivalent to 
20% of the annual salary to be paid to such individual by the Municipality or three (3) times the amount 
paid pursuant to this Agreement, whichever is greater. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 138 of 144



4856-8455-9047, v. 1 

During and after this Agreement, neither party shall directly or indirectly engage in any activities or 
make any statements that may disparage or reflect negatively on the other or any of its elected or appointed 
officials, directors, officers, owners, managers, agents, or employees. 

Notwithstanding that KMS is a subsidiary of the law firm of McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC 
(“McNees”), by engaging KMS, the Municipality understands and agrees that it is not entering into or 
establishing an attorney-client relationship with McNees and it is not a client of McNees. As such, and 
because the services KMS will be providing to the Municipality are not legal services, the protections of 
the attorney-client relationship under the Pennsylvania Rules of Professional Conduct or applicable 
Pennsylvania law including such aspects as the attorney-client privilege or the rules regarding conflicts of 
interest, do not apply with respect to the provision of KMS’s services. 

If any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement shall be found by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be unenforceable, in whole or in part, the rest and remainder of this agreement shall be and 
remain enforceable to the fullest extent allowed by law as if such unenforceable provision had never been 
contained herein. This agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with, and controlled 
by, the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without regard to any conflict of law provisions. The 
parties agree that the exclusive jurisdiction and venue for resolution of any and all disputes between the 
parties arising directly or indirectly hereunder shall lie in the Dauphin County Court of Common Pleas 
and/or the United States District Court for the Middle District of Pennsylvania. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties have duly executed 
this Agreement as of the date first written above. 
 

 
 KEYSTONE MUNICIPAL SOLUTIONS LLC 

 
 
By: _______________________________ 
       Chad Saylor, Executive Director 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary 

Bellefonte Borough 
 
 

By: _______________________________ 
      Assistant Borough Manager 
 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 139 of 144



4856-8455-9047, v. 1 

APPENDIX A 

Scope of Services - Recruitment Services 

 Conduct at least one onsite visit. 

 Review the position’s existing job description and communicate any recommended changes. In the event 
that a job description does not exist, we will provide a recommended job description for the Municipality’s 
review and approval. To the extent that the position is governed by ordinance or the Municipality’s charter, 
we will also review those documents to ensure consistency between these governing documents and the 
respective job description. 

 Draft the job announcement/advertisement and publish such on KMS’ website and provide a copy to be 
published on the Municipality’s website. Included in the cost of the proposal is the advertisement of the 
position through associated job boards. 

 Implement a comprehensive “word of mouth” advertising effort utilizing the individual and collective 
professional networks of the KMS team. This effort will also include conducting searches on appropriate 
job boards and social media sites to identify prospective candidates. 

 Collect and analyze letters of interest and résumés received and provide regular status updates to the 
Municipality. 

 Perform a general online and social media search to screen the most qualified and/or well qualified 
candidates for potential concerns and issues in advance of first-round telephone interviews. 

 Conduct first-round telephone interviews with the most qualified and/or well qualified candidates. 

 Following the first-round telephone interviews and general screening, create a short list of candidates for 
the Municipality to interview. If desired, KMS will schedule and participate in the interview process with 
the Municipality and can generate interview questions for use. 

 Once a candidate is selected, conduct an appropriate background check and assist with the negotiation 
of terms and conditions of employment with the selected candidate. To the extent that the Municipality 
would prefer that a third-party provider conduct the background check, the Municipality would be 
responsible for the costs payable to the third-party provider. We can also assist the Solicitor in the 
preparation of appropriate employment documents, such as an employment agreement, as may be 
applicable. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 140 of 144



 

4856-8455-9047, v. 1 

Some Recent KMS Clients 
 

Dickinson Township, Cumberland County 
Interim Manager, Recruitment, 

Strategic Financial Planning 
 

West Vincent Township, Chester County 
Manager Recruitment, 

Interim Treasurer 
 

Mt. Joy Township, Lancaster County 
Manager Recruitment 

 
Lansdowne Borough, Delaware County 

Manager Recruitment 
 

Perry County 
Strategic Management Planning 

 
Honesdale Borough, Wayne County 

Interim Manager 
Interim Public Works Director 

 
Upper Providence Township, Delaware County 

Interim Manager 
Manager Recruitment 

 
Steelton Borough, Dauphin County 

Interim Manager 
 

East Cocalico Township, Lancaster County 
Manager Recruitment 

 
Monaghan Township, York County 

Interim Secretary-Treasurer 
 

Macungie Borough, Lehigh County 
Interim Manager 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 141 of 144



 

4856-8455-9047, v. 1 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 142 of 144



 

MEMO 

Date:  For Council meeting April 21, 2025 

To:  Bellefonte Borough Council  
From:  Julie Brooks 

Subject:  Stamped Crosswalk Bids   

Bids were accepted for stamped cross walks, the bids were opened on 
Monday April 7th. 
  
The lowest bid was considered a non-responsive bid because it did not 
meet the bid requirements in the documents for option three. After 
consulting Jeff Stover, the next bidder, Laurel Asphalt was selected.  
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 143 of 144



 

Information on the Bell proposed for Talleyrand park  
The Bell will be purchased by the Bellefonte Historical Railroad Society with a grant from Happy 
Valley Adventure Bureau. 
"The Bells are 75 pounds (not the 150 lbs we were originally told) and will need to be secured 
with concrete blocks or other weights (like sandbags) depending upon where it will be 
displayed.  If the Bell is displayed outdoors, you may also need to level the land if not placed on 
a flat surface like a concrete base (which we do not provide).  We have one county actually 
building a structure to house the Bell outside, but of course, that isn’t necessary. I’ll be happy to 
provide pictures when we unveil our first Bell." 
 
Here is the link to the link to the A250PA website section on the bells. 
 
There are currently 3 Bells Across PA already funded and ordered for: 
Curtin Village 
Centre Furnace Mansion 
Philipsburg 
The 2 additional Bells Across PA proposed: 
Bellefonte 
Boalsburg 
 
From Ed Stoddard, Communications Director HVAB: 
“The Boalsburg Heritage Society has already submitted its grant application to the Centre 
County Commissioners / The Happy Valley Adventure Bureau. The Bellefonte Historical Railroad 
Society has an application in process for the Bellefonte bell. We have worked in concert to 
make sure that there is no financial responsibility to the Borough of Bellefonte to place the bell. 
(We might ask for some in-kind assistance during the actual placement of the bell.) 
 
Again, the Pennsylvania Tourism Office has promised to help promote the America250PA Bells 
Across Pennsylvania locations in all 67 PA counties. We are working collaboratively to have 
multiple locations to promote in Centre County. Each location has significant historical 
importance in the United States and is currently a tourist attraction within Centre County.” 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 21, 2025

Page 144 of 144

https://www.america250pa.org/PPE:_Semiquin_Bells

	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 04212025
	COUNCIL MEETING --AGENDA 04212025
	COMMUNICATIONS--Glenn Thompson-Fiscal Year 2026 Appropriations Forms and Deadlines
	COMMUNICATIONS--Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) FFY 2025 Proposed Schedule
	COMMUNICATIONS--The Journal of School Safety PA SRO Treats students to Unique Bus Ride
	COMMUNICATIONS--Talleyrand Park Clap Song (Earth is Home) video
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual March 2025
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual Summary March 2025
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.04022025.DRAFT
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.04072025.DRAFT
	CONSENT--Treasurers Report March 2025
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary March 2025
	COMMITTEE REPORTS. Finance & Administration Report 04.15.25
	REPORTS. MAYOR--Proclamation-Mount Nittany Health Week May 11-17, 2025
	REPORTS. POLICE--March 2025 Report
	REPORTS.PARKING--March 2025 Report
	REPORTS. OCA--Memo to Council for 4.21.2025 meeting
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 4.21.2025
	Short term rental permits
	HARB Meeting Agenda 4.22.2025
	4.22.2025-PC-Agenda

	REPORTS. INTERIM BOROUGH MANAGER--April 2025 Report
	COMMITTEE REPORTS. Ordinance ad hoc Committee Report March & April 2025
	Ordinance ad hoc Committee

	COMMITTEE REPORTS. Parks and Recreation Committee Report April 10, 2025 Final
	Parks and Recreation Committee Report April 10, 2025 p. 1
	Parks and Recreation Committee Report

	Parks and Recreation Committee Report April 10, 2025 p. 2

	LIAISON REPORTS. BIACC March 2025 Report
	LIAISION REPORTS. CCLHM Minutes 01.23.25
	LIAISION REPORTS. Workplace Safety Commitee April 2025
	Agenda.04092025 on letterhead
	Safety Committee Meeting Minutes.03122025
	Safety Inspection Report.trainstation1st quarter2025
	8322 Quiz ENG
	Safety and Health Policy and Procedures Manual Chapters 6-8

	OLD BUSINESS--ORDINANCE NO.04212025-01 Police Department removal of Sergeant
	OLD BUSINESS--ORDINANCE NO.04212025-02 Solid Waste Ordinance amendment
	Memo Ordinance Amendment Chapter 482 Solid Waste
	OLD BUSINESS--ORDINANCE NO.04212025-02 Solid Waste Ordinance amendment

	OLD BUSINESS--KMS Engagement Agreement for Recruitment Services Bellefonte Borough
	OLD BUSINESS--Stamped crosswalk memo
	NEW BUSINESS--Information on the bell in Talleyrand



